Assumption High School 2025-2026 Student/Family Handbook



We are the community of Assumption where faith guides • compassion inspires integrity matters • excellence empowers

Since this handbook is part of the legal contract existing between Assumption High School and parents/guardians and students, it is essential that both parents/guardians and students read the handbook and agree to be governed by it, including the policies, procedures, and regulations related to laptops, publishing student information, and the payment of tuition and fees.

Failure to be informed will not be an acceptable excuse for violations.

The administration retains the right to amend the Student/Family Handbook for reasonable cause. Parents/guardians and students will be given prompt written notification if changes are made.

Questions may be directed to Kamaria Wesley, Dean of Students (502-458-9551).

Assumption High School Student/Family Handbook 2025-2026

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Mission and Vision

Parental Rights and Responsibilities

School Contacts

Enrollment and Fees

Parent Groups and Organizations

School Routines and Procedures

Communication and Technology

School and Dance Uniform Policy

Attendance Policy

Curriculum and Academics

Grading Policies

Student Services and Programs

Special Programs

Guidance Department Policies

Discipline Policies

Athletics

Mission and Vision

Mission Statement

Rooted in the values of Jesus Christ and the spirit of the Sisters of Mercy, Assumption High School, dedicated to the development of the whole person, educates young women in a Catholic community where faith guides, compassion inspires, integrity matters, and excellence empowers.

Vision Statement

Assumption High School will thrive as the college preparatory school of choice for young women by providing a wide range of educational and co-curricular programs that are complemented by spiritual and physical development opportunities. This unique experience will educate the whole person in a caring, Christian environment that is permeated with the charism of Catherine McAuley, foundress of the Sisters of Mercy. Assumption graduates will be socially responsible women, committed to gospel living, lifelong learning, and a life of leadership and service in society. We will cultivate the investment and involvement of the community so that the legacy of this Mercy-sponsored Catholic school lives on for generations.

Outcomes of an Assumption Education

An Assumption graduate is a woman for whom *Faith Guides*. She demonstrates an awareness of Catholic faith and values as evidenced by:

- demonstrating knowledge of Catholicism and Mercy Charism
- cultivating a relationship with God through prayer, reflection, and discernment
- living faith through action
- recognizing that each individual has innate value as a child of God

An Assumption graduate is a woman for whom **Compassion Inspires**.

She responds to the needs of the times as evidenced by:

- advocating for self and others, including the voiceless and vulnerable
- addressing the critical concerns of the Sisters of Mercy through works of social justice
- possessing cultural awareness and appreciation for diversity
- demonstrating effective interpersonal skills as a contributing member of the community

An Assumption graduate is a woman for whom *Integrity Matters*.

She strives to live a life of truth and virtue as evidenced by:

- possessing the knowledge to make informed and responsible decisions in all aspects of her life regarding her physical and mental health, relationships, technology use, and finances.
- demonstrating perseverance and resilience
- learning from mistakes and failure and demonstrating graciousness in success and defeat
- exhibiting personal responsibility and accountability

An Assumption graduate is a woman for whom *Excellence Empowers*.

She pursues lifelong learning with intellectual curiosity as evidenced by:

- establishing and maintaining a growth mindset
- demonstrating the ability to think critically, analyze, and solve problems
- communicating effectively
- maintaining an awareness of historical and current events both at a local and global level
- possessing foundational knowledge sufficient for success in college and/or career-related programs

Critical Concerns of the Sisters of Mercy

As a school sponsored by the Sisters of Mercy, Assumption High School is also committed to addressing the critical concerns of the Sisters of Mercy. The Sisters of Mercy promote a deeper relationship with God and one another in order to intensify work with those seeking a more just and inclusive world. The Sisters of Mercy advocate for the following policies:

- Earth: We work toward the sustainability of all life by caring for Earth's ecosystems, addressing global climate change, and advocating for the fundamental right to clean water.
- **Immigration**: We act in solidarity with immigrants, refugees, and victims of human trafficking, seeking with them a more just and inclusive world.
- **Non-Violence**: We work to improve our personal practice of nonviolence and peacemaking, to collaborate with organizations that foster peace, and to change violent systems and structures.
- Anti-Racism: We work to become an anti-racist multicultural community because we believe racism is an evil affecting us all.
- Women: We give special attention to women's education, health, and spirituality through our legislative advocacy, our schools, healthcare institutions, and spirituality centers.

-from Sisters of Mercy of the Americas, Critical Concerns

Nondiscriminatory Policy

Assumption High School admits female students of any race, color, national and ethnic origin, and sexual orientation to all the rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national and ethnic origin, or sexual orientation in administration of its educational policies, scholarship and loan programs, and athletic and other school-administered programs. It does not discriminate against otherwise qualified applicants on the basis of disability, if, with reasonable accommodations, the student can meet program requirements.

Racism, Bias, and Discrimination Policy

The exchange of ideas and free expression of multiple viewpoints is essential in a true learning community. Our commitment to openness and free expression, however, does not protect harassment or expressions of bias or hate based on social identity. Any form of racism, bias, or discrimination, whether subtle or overt, is contrary to the mission and purpose of a Catholic school. Therefore, it is totally unacceptable for any student, employee, or volunteer at Assumption High School to exhibit racism or bias through language, expression, or behavior or participate in organizations or activities which advocate racism.

Bias Incidents

A bias incident involves language, behavior, or expression that shows bias against a person or group based on actual or perceived social identity (e.g., age, race, ethnicity, religion, disability, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, etc.). Such incidents cause harm by creating mistrust, distress, and exclusion within the school community. Examples include:

- Displaying hate symbols
- Disparaging language, name-calling, slurs, or mocking jokes
- Posting offensive images or messages, including online
- Imitating disabilities or cultural norms
- Discrimination, intimidation, harassment, or threats
- Defacing personal or school property

Bias incidents do not need to meet the legal definition of a crime. However, hate crimes, which involve violence, threats, or property destruction motivated by bias, must be reported to law enforcement. School counselors can assist families with this process.

Reporting Bias

All bias incidents should be reported promptly to a guidance counselor or the Dean of Students. Students who witness or experience a non-emergency incident should preserve evidence and document details when possible (e.g., photos, screenshots, written accounts).

Bias incidents that involve bullying or harassment will be handled under the school's Bullying and Harassment Policy. Other incidents may be addressed through the school's Social Media Policy or other appropriate channels. School staff will determine the appropriate response whether educational, pastoral, and/or disciplinary. Reporting bias incidents allows the school to provide support, intervene appropriately, and uphold its mission to maintain a safe, equitable, and welcoming environment for all.

Custodial and Non-custodial Parents' Rights and Responsibilities

Assumption High School honors the rights of both custodial and non-custodial parents unless restricted by a court order, which must be provided by the custodial parent for enforcement. Without such an order, non-custodial parents have access to academic records and school-related information, and the school is not required to notify the custodial parent when this occurs.

For school purposes, the custodial parent is the parent with whom the student resides, or, in cases of dispute, the parent who enrolled the student until legal documentation states otherwise. Custodial parents alone have the right to remove the student from campus or authorize others to do so.

Parent rights include access to student records, school mailings, parent/teacher conferences, and requests for legitimate absences or early dismissals. Non-custodial parents must notify the Registrar with their contact information to receive school communications or to be consulted about their child.

Parental Authority

Any student enrolled at Assumption, regardless of age, is seen as the responsibility of her parent(s) or legal guardian(s). Even if they are 18 years of age or older, students may not report themselves absent, sign their own permission slips, etc. Students are required to reside with and live under the care and authority of their parents or legal guardians. Any short-term exceptions to this policy must be reported to the Dean of Students.

Child Abuse Policy and Reporting Procedures

All Assumption High School employees and volunteers complete Archdiocese of Louisville Safe Environment Training at hiring, with refresher training in accordance with the policies of the Archdiocese.

By law, all school personnel—including clergy, administrators, counselors, teachers, coaches, and staff—must report suspected child abuse or neglect to Child Protective Services (CPS) using the state hotline. Failure to report is a crime. It is not the role of school employees to investigate; CPS is solely responsible for determining next steps. Assumption strictly follows this law and reports all concerns to CPS.

If a student discloses abuse to a school counselor, the counselor will follow professional and legal guidelines, including Kentucky statutes (HB 309, 2017) for suspected domestic violence.

If the accused is an employee or volunteer, the reporter must inform the president/principal immediately after notifying authorities. Employees will be suspended with pay during the investigation. Volunteers will not be permitted to serve during the investigation.

The president/principal must notify the Chancellor of the Archdiocese and the Executive Director of the Mercy Education System of the Americas (MESA) immediately upon receiving a credible allegation. MESA will inform appropriate Mercy leaders and continue to receive updates throughout the investigation.

Publishing Student Information

To publicize the achievements and accomplishments of our students, Assumption High School may publish students' names, photographs, or achievements in school publications (e.g. the school newspaper, the school yearbook, the morning announcements, the parent newsletter, information sent to parishes, recruiting materials) or release this same information to local newspapers and/or broadcast media. We may also post the information on the school's website and social media sites.

The Rocket Parent Network (RPN) publishes a student/parent directory that is available to Assumption families which includes each student's name and class, parent's name, home address, and phone number. The directory also indicates which families are members of the RPN so other parents know they welcome calls from parents and will be providing a safe place for teens to be. Parents may opt out of having their information included in the directory.

Parents may deny permission to publish any or all of this information by notifying the school in writing.

School Contacts

The most updated list of all faculty and staff can be found on our website. Click **HERE** for contact information.

Visitors

All visitors must check in at the Main Office. Permission must be obtained in advance from the administration to bring visitors to school for educational purposes. Students who leave Assumption to attend another high school are not permitted on school grounds during the school day. Students are not permitted to have personal visitors without permission from the school administration.

Deliveries for Students

Assumption High School does not accept deliveries for students unless it is deemed an urgent situation by the school administration. Students must accept the natural consequences for forgotten items (assignments, lunch, etc.) even if the items are in their vehicle.

ENROLLMENT AND FEES

Continuous Enrollment

Acceptance of the registration fee does not guarantee admission for the upcoming school year. Initial enrollment is contingent upon successful completion of the eighth grade. Continued enrollment is contingent upon the school's ability to meet the student's individual needs. The student's achievement, behavior, attendance, and parental cooperation are all factors in continued enrollment, which is the final decision of the school administration.

Tuition and Fees

Tuition	\$17,500
Registration Fee	\$225
ACTS Fee - Sophomores	\$75
Graduation Fee - Seniors	\$275
Retreat Fee** - Freshmen	\$125
Retreat Fee** - Sophomores and Juniors	\$125
Retreat Fee** - Seniors	\$250
Student Parking Fee*** (for school year)	\$100
Activity Fee	\$125

^{*} **Tuition:** Includes the cost of all textbooks. It also includes the HP Elite Laptop provided for student use excluding the buyout amount stated in the Laptop Use Agreement. Assumption grants a \$1,000 sister discount if more than two students are in attendance the same year. The \$1,000 discount is applied to the younger sibling.

Class Fundraising for Senior Prom

Senior Prom is a significant expense, so each class begins fundraising as freshmen to help cover costs by senior year. Sophomores run a variety of fundraising events, and juniors host a dance as their major fundraiser. All money raised must go toward prom or other senior class activities. After expenses are paid, any remaining funds can be used for a class gift to AHS or carried over to the next senior class. Donations to outside causes are not allowed unless approved by a senior class moderator.

Delinquent Tuition from Previous Year(s)

All previously unpaid tuition and 50% of the upcoming year's tuition will be required by August 1 if a student is to be re-admitted on the first day of class for a new school year. If Assumption High School receives any other payments for other school related obligations, the school will first apply those funds to any past due tuition from the previous year.

If exams were held due to unpaid tuition and tuition is paid after August 1, zeroes will be given for all final exam grades and that grade will replace the Incomplete on the transcript for the course.

^{**} **Retreats**: Assumption is a mission-based community, students are both encouraged and enabled to participate.

^{***} Parking: Juniors and seniors who drive to school must register their cars and pay a parking fee.

Graduation Fee

The \$275 graduation fee for seniors, to cover the cost of graduation and related senior activities. The fee will be added to the student's account and payable in the same method as tuition.

Late Payments

It will be the responsibility of each school family to keep the president or finance director informed of their need to make any changes in their preferred tuition payment plan. Without such information, the following policy will apply when tuition payments are received late.

- Lump Sum Full Payment: Due no later than July 15, if you are set in BB to be auto withdrawal this payment will be deducted from your account on July 1. If your auto payment fails, a second email from BBTM will be sent reflecting a late fee. BBTM will reattempt payment 5-10 days after the failed attempt. If you want to pay by check, it must be received by the main office two business days prior to due date of July 15. If full payment including the late fee has not been made by July 20, the family will be required to select an alternate payment plan offered and must be current with that plan prior to the start of school or the student will not be allowed to start the school year.
- Monthly and Quarterly Payments: Families who choose the monthly or quarterly payment plan and miss
 a payment due to insufficient funds will be automatically charged a missed payment fee by Blackbaud
 Tuition Management and may incur a similar penalty from their own banking institution. If payments are
 missed, instructions on how the missed payment is to be made will be sent to the family from Blackbaud
 Tuition Management. If Blackbaud Tuition Management can no longer attempt a payment due to
 restrictions on the number of attempted payments, the missed payment must be paid directly to
 Assumption within 14 calendar days of the missed payment.

In addition, families who have missed two monthly payments and have not made suitable arrangements within 14 calendar days of the second missed payment will be informed that their daughter(s) will not be readmitted to school according to the non-admission specifications of this policy.

Late Registration

- Families registering late will be expected to fulfill their tuition obligation according to the tuition policy.
- Tuition for students registering on or after the first day of school will be prorated over the number of school days they will be in attendance according to a formula established by the school.

Non-Admission of Students Due to Tuition Delinquency

Families failing to pay tuition according to the agreement which they have made with the school, or who have been unwilling to make suitable alternative arrangements with the school, will be informed that their daughter(s) will not be re-admitted to Assumption High School as outlined in the following paragraph.

All families must be current in their payment of tuition:

- by August 5: If not, students will not be admitted on the first day of school.
- by December 5: If not, students will not be eligible to take semester examinations or be re-admitted on the first day of class in January. All courses where a final exam has not been taken will be given an I for Incomplete on the transcript. If exams were held due to unpaid tuition and tuition is paid after February 1, zeroes will be given for final exam grades and that grade will replace the Incomplete on the transcript for the course. This student would then be eligible to apply for readmission for the following school year.
- by May 5: If not, students will not be allowed to take final exams, participate in senior activities (including prom), or receive diplomas or transcripts until all financial obligations to the school have been paid. All courses where a final exam has not been taken will be given an I for Incomplete on the transcript.

Registration Fee

The registration fee is paid during pre-registration in the spring for the following school year. Incoming freshmen and transfer students must pay the registration fee as part of the enrollment process. This fee is non-refundable. Late registration forms are assessed a higher fee.

Sophomore ACTS Fee

The \$75 ACTS fee for sophomores covers the cost of program activities, TB test, and student transportation. The fee will be added to the student's account and payable in the same method as tuition.

School Fundraising Events

To help supplement the difference between the per-student cost and actual cost of an AHS education and to grow our tuition assistance program, Assumption sponsors two major fundraisers each year: the Walk for Assumption (Rocket Raffle) and the Rocket Spectacular Benefit Dinner. All students are expected to support both events (including students who are traveling for extracurricular activities).

Student Fundraising

All student fundraising activities must be approved by and/or scheduled through the Director of Leadership and Engagement. This includes fundraising by student clubs and organizations, athletic teams, and class groups as well as service-related projects. All athletic teams must have the approval of the athletic director for fundraisers before requesting the fundraiser to be scheduled by the Director of Leadership and Engagement.

No individual or group, including student clubs, organizations, or teams, may solicit donations to Assumption High School from individuals, companies, or civic groups without the prior knowledge and approval of the Executive Director of Advancement. All fundraising activities must be in compliance with charitable gaming regulations as applicable; consult the executive director of advancement for guidance in this regard.

All bake sales must be approved by the Director of Leadership and Engagement, and a club or organization may sign up for a bake sale no more than once a year for one day only. Only one bake sale may be held per week.

Tuition Assistance

Assumption High School allocates financial assistance to students based on demonstrated financial need. Families wanting to be considered for financial aid must submit a formal online application to FACTS Grant & Aid. The link to the online application is available on our website. Applications are made available in December and are due to FACTS Grant & Aid by January 31 for the following school year. Applications must be submitted annually and must be received by FACTS Grant & Aid by the due date posted on the application to be considered for assistance. Late applications and applications with incomplete information may not be considered for assistance unless financial aid funds become available. Please be aware, tuition assistance will not be awarded for the upcoming school year if the tuition status in the current school year is delinquent.

Tuition Refunds

Should a student leave for any reason during the school year, parents are responsible for tuition according to the following:

- 25% of tuition from the first day of school through September 30
- 50% of tuition from October 1 through November 15
- 75% of tuition from November 16 through December 31
- 100% of tuition after January 1

Campus Store

Located on the ground floor of the Convocation and Athletic Center, is the Campus Store. Special schedules and event hours are posted at www.ahsrockets.org. Contact <u>Tricia Ferree</u> for details on store hours. Students may visit during their lunch (with a pass) and between classes but are not permitted during class time. No food or drink is allowed inside, and due to space limitations, students should only enter if they intend to make a purchase. During transitions between classes, no pass is required, but students must have business to conduct if entering the store.

Merchandise returns require the original receipt within 30 days, with clothing in new condition and original tags attached. Clearance items are final sale and not returnable.

Lunch Accounts

Students may set up lunch accounts through FLIK Independent School Dining.

- A \$75.00 minimum deposit is suggested to establish a lunch account. Funds can be deposited using check, cash, or card (online).
- End-of-the-year balances will remain on the student's account for the next school year. Senior account balances will be refunded to parents if the balance is \$5.00 or more.

Vending Machines

Vending machines in the cafeteria and in the CAC near the concession stand may be used by all students before the start of the school day and after dismissal, but may not be used after the first bell until the dismissal bell with the following exceptions. The vending machines in the cafeteria may be used by students during their assigned lunch block.

Water Bottles

Students may carry water bottles and drink water from them throughout the school day. Students who opt not to carry water bottles may occasionally be given permission by their teachers to go to the water fountain for a drink of water; those who are frequently thirsty need to purchase water bottles. Guidelines for water bottles include but are not limited to the following:

- Water bottles must be reusable, clear/transparent, and re-sealable; if they have logos or writing on them, these cannot impede the ability to see easily what is in them. Acceptable water bottles are available for purchase in the AHS campus store but may also be purchased elsewhere.
- Students may not carry bottled water (in disposable bottles) or cups with straws with them at school.
- Water bottles should be kept and carried in the student's purse/backpack, not carried around loose or kept on the student's desk during class, study, etc.
- •Students will not be repeatedly permitted to leave class, RTI, or community time to fill their water bottles. Bottles should be refilled during transitions between classes.
- The faculty/staff/administration reserve the right to check the contents of any water bottle at any time.
- Water bottles should only contain clear water. Failure to comply with this will result in the student losing her water bottle privilege for the remainder of the school year.
- •If any alcoholic beverage is found in a student's possession, the student would be considered in possession of/under the influence of alcohol and the school's drug/alcohol policies would be followed.

Tuition Assistance

Assumption High School allocates financial assistance to students based on demonstrated financial need. Families wanting to be considered for financial aid must submit a formal online application to FACTS Grant &

<u>Aid</u>. Applications are made available in December and are due to FACTS Grant & Aid in February for the following school year.

Work-Study Program

Freshman and sophomore students are welcome to participate in the Work-Study Program. Juniors and seniors are by invitation only as these students have more opportunities for employment outside of AHS. Students selected for Work-Study will earn \$22.00 in tuition credit per 2-hour shift (\$11.00/per hour). Tuition credit earned will be applied to the student's Blackbaud Tuition Management account on a monthly basis, except for tuition credit earned in April and May, which will be applied to the next school year. Work-Study students will do supervised cleaning and occasional set-up/tear down.

- During the school year, Work-Study sessions are held Monday through Friday 3:15-5:15 PM. These hours may change based on a change in the daily school schedule, such as a 12:30 PM dismissal day.
 - Students selected for Work-Study will sign up for shifts on the week prior on a first come, first serve basis. Students will be responsible for signing up for shifts weekly that fit their availabilities that week. Participants should commit to the semester(s) that best suit their availabilities, accounting for athletic and other commitments.
 - o 4 students per shift are needed with a spot for an alternate in case one student drops.
 - o 3 unexcused absences per semester would lead to a student being removed from the program.
- Work-Study runs August through May each school year except for breaks, holidays, and other school days off.
- Students agree to work per semester or for the entire school year.
- A new application must be submitted each year in order to be considered for this program.

Questions regarding tuition credit can be addressed to <u>Jessica Thompson</u>. Schedule and any Work-Study related questions may be addressed to <u>Heather Satterly</u>.

Parent Groups and Organizations

Assumption Parent Organization (APO)

The mission of the Assumption Parent Organization (APO) is to communicate to all members of the AHS community and to encourage active support and volunteerism at Assumption High School. All AHS parents are automatically members of the Assumption Parent Organization—there is no cost to join and no sign up necessary.

The APO Board consists of four officers and seven to nine "class representatives". These representatives assist in helping families become connected and involved at AHS. Contact <u>Tricia Ferree</u>, Manager of Special Events and Volunteers and APO Liaison, for meeting dates and information about upcoming activities. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Assumption Rocket Men (ARM)

ARM was developed to provide a way for both fathers and father figures to be involved during a student's time at AHS. The group offers opportunities that are both fun and service oriented. Contact <u>Tricia Ferree</u>, Manager of Special Events and Volunteers and ARM Liaison, for meeting dates and information about upcoming activities. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Parent Prayer Group

Parents, grandparents, guardians, and interested family members are invited to gather and pray for their special Assumption student and all the young women at Assumption as well as the administration, faculty, staff, and all employees. The group meets in the Chapel at Assumption. Participants can come every week or as often as they can make it, and those who cannot physically make it to Assumption can be emailed the week's prayer outline so that they can pray alongside the group wherever they may be. Contact Campus Minister Mary Ann Steutermann with any questions or to express interest in joining this group. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Rocket Parent Network (RPN)

RPN is a trustworthy group of Assumption parents united to providing a drug and alcohol-free social environment for teens. Parents commit to chaperoning their daughters and their friends to be sure that alcohol and drugs are not used while at their home. Membership dues are \$10 per year, or \$30 for four years. A directory is free in a parent's first year of membership and may be purchased for \$5 per year in subsequent years. Parents/guardians interested in joining the Rocket Parent Network should contact Guidance and Counseling Department Chair, Dawn Deweese, or Guidance and Counseling Assistant, Meghan Rogers. Click the link above for more detailed information.

RPN dues provide funding for

- RPN scholarships offered to rising seniors who are Peer Leaders and whose parents are members of the Rocket Parent Network.
- a "Sweet Sixteen" safe-driving gift packet for each Assumption student on her 16th birthday

School Routines and Procedures

Assumptions High School A - DAILY SCHEDULE -

NOTE: FIRST BLOCK EACH DAY INCLUDES 5 MINUTES FOR MORNING PRAYER
AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

MONDAY, WEDNESDAY, FRIDAY MIDDAY RTI

FIRST BLOCK: 8:10-9:30 A.M. SECOND BLOCK: 9:30-10:50 A.M.

RTI: 10:50-11:50 A.M.

THIRD BLOCK: 11:50 A.M.-1:40 P.M. **1st LUNCH**: 11:50-12:20 (return by 12:25)

2nd LUNCH: 12:30-1:00 (leave at 12:30; return by 1:05)

3rd LUNCH: 1:10-1:40 (leave at 1:10) **FOURTH BLOCK**: 1:40-3:00 P.M. **DISMISSAL**: 3:00 P.M.

TUESDAY AND THURSDAY LATE START/COMMUNITY DAY

FIRST BLOCK: 8:50-10:10 A.M.
SECOND BLOCK: 10:10-11:30 A.M.
COMMUNITY TIME: 11:30 A.M.-11:50 A.M.
THIRD BLOCK: 11:50 A.M.-1:40 P.M.
1st LUNCH: 11:50-12:20 (return by 12:25)

2nd LUNCH: 12:30-1:00 (leave at 12:30; return by 1:05)

3rd LUNCH: 1:10-1:40 (leave at 1:10) FOURTH BLOCK: 1:40-3:00 P.M. DISMISSAL: 3:00 P.M.

EARLY DISMISSAL - 12:30 SCHEDULE -

FIRST BLOCK: 8:10-9:15 A.M SECOND BLOCK: 9:15-10:20 A.M. THIRD BLOCK: 10:20-11:25 A.M. FOURTH BLOCK: 11:25-12:30 P.M. DISMISSAL: 12:30 P.M.

LET US TAKE ONE DAY ONLY IN HANDS AT A TIME, RESOLVE TO DO GOOD TODAY AND BETTER TOMORROW. - CATHERINE MCAULEY

Arrival

The building opens and student supervision begins at 7:15 a.m. From 7:15 to 8:10/8:50a.m., students not involved in an activity directly supervised by a faculty/staff member must stay in the cafeteria. The Media Center also opens at 7:15 a.m. for quiet study. At 8:00/8:40 a.m., students may go to their first block classrooms and take care of personal business as time allows before the start of class.

Students not physically present in any of their classes at the start of the class will be marked tardy and must email the Attendance Office, copy their teacher, and report their arrival time to class. Accumulated tardies are subject to the terms of the attendance policy.

Dismissal

Students are dismissed at 3:00 p.m. Student drivers exit campus first, followed by all remaining vehicles once the student lot clears. All students must be picked up immediately after dismissal or any extracurricular activity.

After 3:15 p.m., students may not remain in the building without direct faculty/staff supervision. Those staying between 3:15 and 4:30 p.m. without supervision must report to the cafeteria. All students must leave campus by 4:30 p.m. (4:00 p.m. on Fridays) unless participating in a supervised activity. Assumption is not responsible for students remaining on campus after hours.

For drop-off and pick-up, all vehicles must enter from Bardstown Road and use the carpool lane, pulling as far forward as possible before stopping. Students may enter the building through any designated entrance in the morning and leave through any exterior door at dismissal.

Drivers must not block the Bardstown Road/Tyler Lane intersection while waiting on the shoulder to enter campus. If space is not available, drivers should circle the block or wait at the Gardiner Lane Shopping Center.

Students may not be dropped off or picked up in AHS parking lots, on Bardstown Road, Tyler Lane, or on neighboring private property (including Strathmoor Presbyterian Church, Lancashire Avenue businesses, or Bardstown Road shops). Students will receive disciplinary action should they be picked up or dropped off in these areas.

On early dismissal (12:30) days, the building and campus close 20 minutes after dismissal for all students not under direct supervision.

Digital Learning Day Assignments and Activities

Teachers for that day's classes will post lesson plans on Teams by 10:30 a.m. Students will need to check each of their scheduled classes' Microsoft Teams pages for the lesson plan for the day and complete the assignments the next physical class meeting. If a Digital Learning Day is the second consecutive Digital Learning Day for that class/day, any assignment that was due at the next physical class meeting will now be due by 10:00 p.m. on the day of the second consecutive Digital Learning Day for the class.

The lesson for each class should be about one hour in length so students should budget three to four hours for Digital Learning Day activities, depending upon whether they have study on that school day.

All teachers will be available during the course of the Digital Learning Day and will respond to any email questions from their students by 6:00 p.m.

The school counselors and college counselors will conduct online "office hours" on Digital Learning Days and will be available to consult with students via email or Microsoft Teams. They will send their students an email by 10:30 a.m. letting them know the times they will be available during the day.

Detailed information about Digital Learning Days can be found here.

Community/RTI (Rockets Taking Initiative) Time

Community/RTI time is a block that is generally held each day in the middle of the day. This time is structured to do the following:

Community Time:

- create for students a home base that will stay together throughout their four years with faculty/staff who know and love them
- promote school and class spirit by providing time for class meetings and activities
- provide students with an opportunity to socialize and form relationships with their classmates
- support the Family Program and allow families to interact on a regular basis

Rockets Taking Initiative (RTI):

- provide students with an opportunity to meet with teachers for academic assistance and growth opportunities and to work independently
- provide opportunities for academic, college, and career advising and activities for social emotional health
- provide opportunities for students to engage in life and leadership skill enrichment opportunities.
- provide opportunities for freshmen to be mentored by older students

On Community Time Days students will generally report to their homeroom, a class meeting, or other assembly or school-wide activity.

During RTI, every student will have new opportunities to practice and seek/receive support for what is being learned in class, participate in academic, life, and leadership skills enrichment opportunities, as well as make choices to manage independent time. Students are expected to take full advantage of the opportunity to maximize their learning in and outside of the classroom.

- Students who teachers identify for academic support with either academic content or missing assignments will be required to attend that learning session during RTI Time.
- If students are not assigned to a learning session then they will be expected to make choices about the learning sessions to attend using our RTI scheduling system, Student Support Time.
- Once a student has reported to that RTI session, the student must remain in the session for the entirety of the session. No passes are allowed.
- Students who require a change to a self-selected RTI session on the day of the session must use outlined RTI Scheduling Change procedures.

Parking

Parking on campus or in a school-provided spot is a junior/senior privilege. During the school day, a student who is not assigned a parking space may not park on campus or in a school-provided spot. Seniors and juniors who register by the deadline will be assigned a parking space at the beginning of the school year.

At no time may any student park in fire lanes, faculty/staff spaces, or visitor parking areas. Students are not permitted to park in the following areas:

- parallel to the sidewalk along Bardstown Road
- parking spaces reserved for St. Raphael Church
- residential streets, including Tyler Lane, Eleanor Avenue, Lancashire Avenue, Gladstone Avenue, Hoock Avenue, and other residential streets near Assumption High School
- parking spaces intended for patrons of local businesses
- on private property without the express permission of the owner(s) of such private property
- at Strathmoor Presbyterian Church unless arrangements have been made directly with the church.

Violators will be issued disciplinary action and could lose future parking privileges. Violators parking illegally are subject to having their vehicles towed.

Assumption has the right to search and/or disable any vehicle brought on school property or parked in a space arranged for by the school. For a complete list of parking protocols, please click here.

Communication and Technology

Cell Phones

Students must keep cell phones turned off and out of sight during school hours; they may not be used, seen, or heard while school is in session. This prohibition extends to students when they are participating in school-related functions such as field trips, retreats, and ACTS, unless express permission is given by the supervising adult or there is a true emergency. When a cell phone is seen/heard during school hours (8:10/8:50-3:00 p.m.), the phone is immediately confiscated and sent to the Main Office; the Dean of Students will check the phone to determine if intentional use violations have been committed. A phone being seen or heard will automatically result in a demerit being issued to the student; two demerits will be issued for intentional/active use; repeated intentional use violations will result in the phone being confiscated until the end of the school year.

If a student is ill, she needs to go to the Attendance Office/Health Room to contact a parent, not call, text, or email home. If there is a critical situation in which the parent needs to contact the student during the day, the parent needs to call the Main Office and the information, if truly critical, will be relayed to the student.

Student Use of Social Media

Students with parental permission to utilize social media are encouraged to always exercise the utmost caution when participating in any form of social media or online communications, both with the AHS community and beyond. Students who participate in online interactions must remember that their posts reflect on the entire AHS community and, as such, are subject to the same behavioral standards set forth in the Student Code of Conduct and the Acceptable Use Policy. Students who defame or portray in a negative light the school or members of the school community will be subject to disciplinary action including verbal reprimand, parent notification, detention, demerits, suspension, and/or expulsion.

General Guidelines for Students

Students are expected to abide by the following:

- To protect the privacy of AHS students and faculty, students may not, under any circumstances, create digital still photos, digital video or audio recordings of AHS community members either on campus or at off-campus AHS events for online publications or distribution without the knowledge and consent of those being recorded or photographed.
- Be aware of what you post online. Social media venues are very public. What you contribute leaves a digital footprint for all to see. Do not post anything you would not want friends, enemies, parents, teachers, or future employers to see. Even when you think a communication is private, it seldom is and you have no control of where it goes or who sees it once you post it.
- Be safe online. Never give out personal information, including, but not limited to, last names, phone numbers, addresses, exact birth dates, and pictures. Do not share your password with anyone except your parents.
- Do your own work! Do not use other people's intellectual property without their permission. Be aware that it is a violation of copyright law to copy and paste others' thoughts. It is good practice to hyperlink your sources.
- Be aware that pictures, videos, songs, and audio clips may also be protected under copyright laws. Verify that you have permission to use the images, videos, songs, or other clips.

- How you represent yourself online is an extension of yourself. Do not misrepresent yourself by using someone else's identity.
- Captions, blogs, and wiki posts should be well written. Follow writing conventions including proper grammar, capitalization, and punctuation.
- Students may not use social media sites to publish disparaging or harassing remarks about AHS community members, athletic or academic contest rivals, or any individual, organization or entity, nor may they create fake accounts to do so.
- Students who do not abide by these terms and conditions may lose their opportunity to access online tools.

This Social Media Policy will be in addition to the AHS Acceptable Use Policy. Failure to abide by these policies, as well as with other policies at AHS, may result in disciplinary action as described in the Student/Parent Handbook or as determined by the school administration.

Email Guidelines and Regulations

- School-provided email accounts are to be used only for school-related communication.
- School email needs to be checked frequently, at least once each day. Important information is communicated to students via email.
- Just as with announcements to be made over the PA, a student wanting to send an email message to an entire class or to the whole student body needs to give the message to the appropriate faculty/staff member (class moderator, club moderator, athletic director, etc.), who will send the email on behalf of the student. A student may contact the Dean of Students if she needs assistance in this area.
- Students are not to give their school email addresses to others outside the school community with the
 exception of using it for academic purposes such as college applications, turnitin.com, club
 communications, etc.
- School email accounts are monitored by the school network administrator who will report inappropriate usage to the Dean of Students for disciplinary follow up.
- As with all communication, appropriate language must be used.
- A subject should be included when sending email via a school account.
- If an inappropriate email from anyone is ever received via a school account, the receiver should immediately forward the message to 911@ahsrockets.org.

Student Leaders and Social Media

All student leaders understand that by assuming a position of leadership within Assumption High School that they will always represent Assumption positively, including in their use of social media. Student leaders agree to allow the Director of Leadership and Engagement and organization moderators access to review any social media accounts. The Director of Leadership and Engagement and the club/activity moderator or sponsor must be able to monitor and edit its content. Violation of this policy will result in probation and/or dismissal from office.

Communication with Students via Social Media and Digital Devices

- Employees working with students are to use only organizational email rather than personal email accounts.
- If a student emails an employee from her personal email account, the employee may respond to the email but should also send it to the student's school email account.
- Discuss only academic and school-related topics with students. The tone of such emails should always be professional and avoid anything that anyone could interpret as "intimate" in nature.

- If a student sends an employee an email or other message that is of a personal nature and not related to school activities or that is sexually explicit, the employee should not respond to the message but should save a copy of it and then immediately forward it to the student's counselor or the Dean of Students.
- All coaches (or other non-faculty/staff group leaders) should have an AHS email that is used for communication with students and/or parents.
- Employees may not give home phone numbers or personal cell phone numbers to students except when necessary to communicate regarding school-related activities. Faculty and staff should notify the Dean of Students when they are using home phones and/or personal cell phones to communicate with students; coaches should notify the Athletic Director when they are using home phones and/or personal cell phones to communicate with students.
- Any communication an employee has with a student should be appropriate for a parent or the school administration to read.

If a student or parent has a concern regarding the appropriateness of any communication from a school employee, they should contact a school official (Dean of Students, Athletic Director, Principal).

For the protection and safety of all in the AHS community,

- For social media accounts, sites, etc., accessible to the public, full names of students are used when posting information and/or a picture, video or audio file only when the information being shared is a matter of public record (award being given, recognition within the Louisville community, athletic competition, etc.); otherwise, students are identified in generic terms (e.g. "a group of juniors") or by first name and last initial.
- If a student or parent requests that a posting and/or photo, video, or audio file featuring the student be removed from a school-sponsored social media site/account, the account administrator will comply with the request.
- If a faculty/staff member, parent, graduate, or other community member requests that a posting and/or photo, video, or audio file featuring her/him be removed from a school-sponsored social media site/account, the account administrator will comply with the request.
- To publicize the achievements and accomplishments of students, Assumption High School has the permission of parents to publish students' names, photographs, or achievements in school publications (e.g. the school newspaper, the school yearbook, the morning announcements, the parent newsletter, information sent to parishes, recruiting materials) or release this same information to local newspapers and/or broadcast media. We may also post the information on the school's website and social media sites.
- Permission to publish student names, photographs, etc., does not extend to other organizations, however. If students' photos are taken by community organizations (at Assumption, on campus/at school-sponsored events), the organization may not publish this information in print or electronically, including on their social media sites, without the express written permission of the student's parent. If/after the content has been published by the school on its official social media sites, community organizations may "share" or re-publish it in their communications.

A participant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Archdiocese of Louisville, Assumption High School, its affiliates, Board of Directors, employees and successors, and assigns against any damages, losses, liabilities, judgments, causes of action, costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs arising out of any claim by a third party) relating to any material a participant has posted on AHS-sponsored sites. By posting

a comment or material of any kind on a AHS-sponsored site, the participant hereby agrees to the Social Media Policy set forth above.

HP Elite Laptops

The school provides all students with school-owned HP Elite Laptops for use at school and home during the school year; they receive their computers in late July or early August. Incoming freshmen and transfer students and their parents must attend an orientation about how to use and care for the device and agree to the Laptop Use Agreement in order for the student to be provided with a laptop. Students are expected to turn in their laptops for the summer on the last day of the school year for the IT Department to update the software. The same laptop will be returned to the student when she returns in August. Students are responsible for their own backups.

The following laptop policies should be particularly noted:

- The school-provided case must be used when transporting the laptop from place to place within the school and to/from school.
- Identifying labels that the school places on the laptops are not to be removed. If the label is removed, the student will receive a detention and a new label will be ordered, for which the student must pay \$10. The student will receive an additional detention during each time she has study once the label is ready if it is not paid for and attached to the laptop.
- Students are to charge their laptops at home each evening and bring them to school fully charged.
 - o Students who leave their laptops at home may borrow a loaner to use for the school day from the Boeckmann Lab. Students will be allowed to have eight "free" loaner checkouts per school year and will receive a detention on the ninth and each subsequent checkout. Students are expected to return loaner laptops to the Boeckmann Lab before the end of the day. Longer loan times are available in instances of repair due to warranty damage or malfunction.
 - o A limited number of charging cables will be available for check-out in the Media Center (not from the Boeckmann Lab); they are due back at the end of the day, unless a student has a new one ordered; in this case, they may work with the media specialist to keep them for a longer time.
 - A limited number of charging stations are available in the Media Center and in study.
 - Students who bring their charging cables to school need to be sure to put their names on them.
 - O A student who defaces her computer by affixing stickers, writing on it, etching into it, etc. will face disciplinary consequences. If the computer can be restored to good condition, the student will be required to do this and will be issued one demerit for vandalism to school property. If the computer is permanently defaced, the student will be issued a minimum of three demerits for damaging school property and will be required to restore the computer to good condition to the extent possible; because we would not be able to issue a permanently defaced computer to another student, her parents will be required to purchase the computer at the pro-rated buyout price if the student withdraws before her graduation.

Disclosure: The Student and her Parent/Guardian agree to these policies and regulations when signing the Student-Parent Handbook Agreement Form. Please review the Laptop Use Agreement here.

Music Devices During the School Day

Students may use their laptops (not cell phones) to listen to music during study; earbuds/wireless headphones (such as AirPods) must be used and the volume should be low enough that others cannot hear the music. Students may use their laptops to listen to music during class only when the teacher gives specific permission to do so. Students may wear earbuds/wireless headphones only when they have permission to listen to music

on their computers; students who are wearing earbuds/wireless headphones in the halls, at lunch, or at any time when they do not have explicit permission to do so will be in violation of our wearable technology policy and subject to disciplinary consequences.			

Uniform Policy and Senior Privileges

Uniform Code

Uniforms and clothes worn on uniform break days are to be neat, clean, and in good repair; no cut, ripped, or torn clothing is allowed, even on uniform break and spirit wear days. Students are to be in full uniform by when the school day begins. Uniforms must also be worn in detention. The name badge worn on a school-provided lanyard is considered part of the uniform. Uniform skirts, pants, shirts, sweaters, and sweatshirts must be purchased from Shaheen's.

A detailed outline of the school uniform and dance dress code policies can be found by clicking here.

Senior Privileges

Special privileges are granted to seniors as a component of their final year of high school. Senior privileges are not rights, instead they are privileges granted by the school administration. The administration reserves the right to rescind any privilege for just cause or if it is abused.

Senior end-of-the-year activities include the following:

- Mother-Daughter Breakfast
 - Senior Celebration
 - Senior Prom
 - Baccalaureate
 - Senior Honors Ceremony
 - Graduation

To participate in senior end-of-the-year activities, tuition must be current as specified in the school's financial policies. Additionally, to participate in graduation and receive a diploma, a senior must meet the academic requirements specified in this handbook, be current in tuition payment, and have fulfilled her other financial responsibilities to the school including those related to overdue Media Center materials, lunch accounts, etc.

Privileges for the Class of 2026

- Seniors choose their own lockers before other students.
- Seniors may wear their class sweatshirts with the uniform skirt year-round; a senior T-shirt or a uniform polo shirt must be worn under the sweatshirt; T-shirts are to be tucked in.
- Seniors may eat lunch outside in the Senior Courtyard
- Seniors with non-lunch-block studies may work in the Senior Courtyard during study with permission of the study coordinator.
- Seniors are excused from attending school on Testing Day (Wednesday, October 8, 2025); they are encouraged to use this day for college visits.
- Seniors will have a special holiday from school on the day of their senior prom, Friday, May 8, 2026.
- Seniors are seated first, sit in the front, and leave first from all assemblies, pep rallies, liturgies, etc.
- Seniors who drive carpools and apply for parking spaces by the stated deadline are given preference over juniors with the same number of students in their carpools in the assignment of parking spaces.

Senior Pranks

End-of-year class activities with the intent to litter, cause damage on or to school property, and/or disrupt the school day will be considered serious infractions. "Senior pranks" are not allowed at Assumption and those who perpetuate them may be denied participation in end-of-year senior activities at the discretion of the

administration. Violation of this regulation could also cause a suspension, require financial restitution, and/or involve legal authorities, which could result in a charge of criminal mischief.

Dance Policies

Assumption strives to create a positive, safe, and respectful environment at all school-sponsored dances. Students are expected to follow all school rules, including those on dress code, body piercings (ear only), and visible tattoos. For more detailed information about dance dress code policies, click **here.**

Rules

- Students must show their current ID to enter. Those without IDs will be admitted but given detentions.
- Each student may bring one outside guest, unless otherwise specified. Dance are open to all Assumption students or as specified:
 - Freshman/Sophomore Semi-Formal sponsored by the Sophomore Class
 - Schoolwide Father/Daughter Dance
 - Junior Prom
 - Senior Prom
- Tickets must be purchased in advance (except for the Father/Daughter Dance); no tickets sold at the door.
- Attendees must arrive within the first hour and stay until the last hour. Senior Prom attendees must arrive by the scheduled dinner time.
- Large bags, purses, or backpacks are not allowed inside dances and must be checked with an administrator.
- No re-entry after leaving.
- The use of any illicit substances is not allowed by students or guests.
- Inappropriate or sexually suggestive dancing and public displays of affection are prohibited.
- DJs/Bands must play music appropriate for a Catholic school and songs will be stopped if behavior or lyrics are inappropriate.
- Students or guests who behave inappropriately will be dismissed, and parents will be contacted.
- Alcohol screenings may occur upon entry and exit. If alcohol is detected, a second test will confirm results before further action is taken.
- Parents will be contacted immediately if a student or guest appears under the influence, possesses, or
 uses alcohol or drugs. If a parent cannot be reached, students/guests will be turned over to legal
 authorities present at the dance.
- Assumption strongly discourages students from hosting or attending parties that involve illegal or immoral behavior, especially in connection with school dances or events.

Attendance and Make-Up Work Policies

Assumption High School believes that regular daily attendance is necessary for a successful academic experience. It is the expectation of Assumption that its students be at school for a full day each day that school is in session. All students are required by law to attend school every day and to be on time for school and all classes. Additionally, tardiness is not just being late for school as traditionally interpreted; it is defined by law as "any amount of instructional time missed." This includes being late to school or leaving school before classes are dismissed. Therefore, in accordance with Kentucky education laws and the beliefs of Assumption High School, the following policies will be enforced regarding student attendance.

Truancy and State Attendance Laws

Attendance Required by Law - Kentucky Code 159.150 states that any child who has three unexcused absences during a school year is considered truant and in violation of the law. Unexcused absences are defined as absences that are unreported to the school by a parent/guardian on the date of the absence.

According to Kentucky State Law:

- (1) Any student who has attained the age of six years, but has not reached his or her eighteenth birthday, who has been absent from school without valid excuse for three or more days, or tardy without valid excuse on three or more days, is a truant.
- (2) Any student enrolled in a school who has attained the age of eighteen years, but has not reached his or her twenty-first birthday, who has been absent from school without valid excuse for three or more days, or tardy without valid excuse on three or more days, is a truant.
- (3) Any student who has been reported as a truant two or more times is an habitual truant.
- (4) For the purposes of establishing a student's status as a truant, the student's attendance record is cumulative for an entire school year. If a student transfers from one Kentucky school to another during a school year, the receiving school shall incorporate the attendance information provided under KRS 159.170 in the student's official attendance record.
- (5) A local board of education may adopt reasonable policies that:
 - (a) Require students to comply with compulsory attendance laws;
 - (b) Require truants and habitual truants to make up unexcused absences;
 - (c) Impose sanctions for noncompliance; and
 - (d) Collaborate and cooperate with the Court of Justice, the Department for Community Based Services, the Department of Juvenile Justice, regional community mental health centers, and other service providers to implement and utilize early intervention and prevention programs, such as truancy diversion, truancy boards, mediation, and alternative dispute resolution to reduce referrals to a court-designated worker.

For the safety of our students, the school must know where students are at all times during the school day. Truancy is any absence from school, class, study hall, lunch, or service for any length of time. For example, a student who has a pass to go to the Media Center from Study but instead goes to the Athletic Office would be considered truant. In any instance of truancy, parents will be informed as soon as possible. **All schoolwork missed because of truancy (including tests) will receive grades of zero.** Subsequent truancies may result in school-initiated dismissal from Assumption. Students found to be "skipping" classes will receive zeroes for all work missed through skipping classes and will be subject to disciplinary action.

General

Classes are scheduled from 8:10/8:50 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Leaving campus is not permitted during school hours without the permission of the Dean of Students. The following general policies apply to individual classes as well as full days:

- The school building opens, and supervision of students begins at 7:15 a.m. daily unless indicated otherwise in the Rocket Report and/or over the daily announcements. Students may not arrive at school earlier than 7:15 a.m.
- Students are to be picked up immediately following dismissal and immediately following any extracurricular activity. Students who remain in the building after 3:15 p.m. must be under the direct supervision of a faculty/staff member—they may not remain unattended in classrooms, hallways, labs, etc. Students may not remain in the building after 4:30 p.m. Students who are in unauthorized areas without supervision will be subject to disciplinary consequences.
- Students who need to be picked up for early dismissal must be picked up no later than 2:30 p.m.
- Assumption cannot be responsible for students who choose to remain on campus after school or after extracurricular activities.
- Students are not permitted to leave the classroom, except in cases of necessity and with permission from a faculty/staff member.
- Students who arrive more than 20 minutes late for a class must remain in the class but <u>are recorded</u> <u>as absent</u> for purposes of calculating the course attendance requirement.
- Early dismissals from class more than 20 minutes before the end of the class will be considered an absence for the class.
- Students are encouraged not to schedule appointments during school hours.
- The school must receive a phone call or email from a parent prior to an anticipated absence (medical or dental appointment, etc.)
- Students leaving campus during the school day and using their personal vehicle for appointments or
 other emergencies may do so with a phone call or email permission from a parent prior to leaving
 campus through the Attendance Office. Assumption will not allow students to leave campus via
 Lyft/Uber/taxi or other car services without a signed note from a parent or guardian. Please refer to
 Uber and Lyft guidelines for age restrictions.
- Parents who arrive after 2:30 p.m. for dismissal will have to pull into the carpool line. Students will not be released for dismissal through the Attendance Office after 2:30 p.m.
- If a student is absent, a parent must call or email the Attendance Office at attendance@ahsrockets.org between the hours of 7:30 am and 9:30 am on the day of the absence. If a call is not received, the absence could contribute to truancy totals.
- Parents are responsible for contacting the Dean of Students at least one week in advance in cases of
 extended absence (more than five consecutive days). All assignments and tests missed due to
 extended absence must be made up in accordance to the make-up work policy unless special
 arrangements are made with the Dean of Students or the Deans of Studies. Students who anticipate
 an extended absence should notify their teachers following parental communication with the
 Attendance Office of anticipated absences. Students are responsible for communicating with
 teachers about all assignments missed while absent.
- Skipping classes or leaving school without permission will result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

Absences

An absence is recorded for each block that a student misses. Assumption does **not** differentiate between excused and unexcused absences for the purpose of calculating cumulative absences from classes or for allowed make-up work.

Students who are absent will have the opportunity to make up missed work in accordance with the make-up work policies. Make-up work for absences is the responsibility of the student. She must assume the responsibility for checking class agendas on Teams before returning to her next class, getting missed notes from classmates, seeing the teacher(s) if she has any questions, and submitting the work within the established time frame. Students should make necessary arrangements with teachers promptly upon returning to school.

Excessive Absences

Each class that a student misses prevents the student from receiving the classroom instruction necessary for being successful in a course and receiving credit. Students with absences exceeding three full school days in a school year may be in violation of the compulsory attendance laws of the State of Kentucky. In accordance with Kentucky Law KRS 159.051, <u>nine</u> total days of absences during any one semester may result in a student not receiving academic credit and renders a student ineligible to keep a driver's permit or license or to obtain one.

Communication of Excessive Absences from Classes

The Dean of Students will communicate with students and parents about excessive absences from classes. The timing of communication will be determined based on the number of absences. Communication about excessive absences will be shared with students and parents on a weekly basis according to the following:

- Students who reach **3** absences in at least one class during the semester will receive an official email notice copied to her parents for excessive absences from the Dean of Students.
- Students who reach **5** absences in at least one class will receive another official email notice copied to her parents from the Dean of Students and the student will be required to have a meeting with the Dean of Students.
- Students who reach **7 absences** in at least one class during the semester must meet with her parents and the Dean of Students to discuss intervention strategies. The student will be placed on an attendance contract which may include suspension from participation and attendance of all extra-curricular activities (including participation in Assumption athletics).
- Students who reach **10 absences** in at least one class during the semester will NOT receive academic credit for the course.

Students who miss class and have met the requirements for extended physical or mental health treatment will not be penalized under the excessive absences guidelines but will receive official email notes regarding absences in compliance with state guidelines and Assumption attendance policies. In applicable cases, students with extended absences of 7 or more days will be given one in-school Care Day where they will work to design their make-up plan and then work to begin steps toward completing that make-up plan. A Care Day is not calculated as an absence.

Tardiness

Students are recorded tardy when they enter a class after the teacher begins class. Students who enter a class more than **20 minutes** late are recorded absent for purposes of calculating the course attendance requirement (but must remain in the class). When students are tardy to any class 4 times during a semester,

they will receive 1 demerit. Each subsequent tardy will result in an infraction with the consequences as shown below. Subsequent tardies after a student's tenth tardy may result in the student being dismissed from Assumption.

Number of Tardies	Infraction Consequence
4	1 demerit; parent notification
5	1 demerit; student meeting with Dean of
	Students
6	2 demerits; parent meeting with Dean of
	Students
7	2 demerits; 3 days of 30- minute after school
	duties
8	3 demerits; 5 days of 30- minute after school
	duties
9	3 demerits; 7 days of 30- minute after school
	duties; no extra-curricular activities for 10
	school days
10	1-day suspension (7 demerits of which 3
	demerits must be served); 9 days of 30-
	minute after school duties; conditional
	enrollment agreement

Having a reason for tardiness or absence does not necessarily constitute a legitimate and acceptable excuse. Decisions about non-routine tardies and absences will not be made without a written explanation from the student's parent.

Early Dismissal

To receive an early dismissal, a signed note or email from a parent must be sent to the Attendance Office on the morning of the early dismissal; she will be given an early dismissal slip to show her teacher when it is time for her to leave. The slip is to be dropped off in the Attendance Office before the student leaves the building.

Any time a student misses more than 20 minutes of a class, she is considered absent for the class. Medical and other appointments should therefore be made after school whenever possible or during study time if necessary.

Early dismissals requested on certain days will be excused for medically related appointments only. In order for a student to earn full credit on a mastery or a progress assignment, the student must turn in a doctor's note to the Attendance Office or email a doctor's note to attendance@ahsrockets.org if absent on one of the following days:

- school days just prior to or following holidays or other school breaks;
- a semester/final exam day.

Students who do not provide a doctor's note will be required to complete or submit any mastery assignment but will only have 50% of the credit earned for that assignment calculated in the grade for the semester. Any progress assignments submitted will also be penalized 50% of the grade earned.

Intervention Strategies and Attendance Agreement

Should it be necessary for attendance interventions, the plan will vary based on the individual needs of the student. Assumption reserves the right to place any student who has excessive absences on an attendance

contract. An attendance contract is an agreement that details the expectations for a student's attendance and outlines the requirements that must be followed for the student to remain enrolled and in good standing. Failure to comply with the attendance contract may result in disciplinary action up to and including not receiving course credit and dismissal from Assumption.

Bereavement

When a student experiences the death of an immediate family member, and with the family's approval, the student's homeroom and any other classmates who wish to attend may travel together by bus to the funeral during school hours. This will count as attendance at a school-related function, not an absence. Students must wear their uniforms and travel to and from the funeral together. The bereaved student's grade-level counselor may coordinate details such as transportation, permission slips, and logistics based on the funeral's date, time, location, and the student's wishes. If a student does not ride the school-provided bus, a parent/guardian must transport them, and the Attendance Office must be notified in advance. Permission slips for bus riders will be managed by the Guidance Department. Only students traveling as part of the official school group will be considered to be attending a school-related function; those who drive themselves will not.

Absences and Extra-Curricular Activities

Students must be present for a minimum of 2 class periods of the school day to participate in school activities that day. If a student is unable to come to school, we must assume they are unable to participate in an extracurricular activity. Not following these attendance guidelines may result in suspension from extra-curricular activities by the Dean of Students. Extra-curricular activities include all athletic and club activities.

Absences Due to College Visits

Assumption supports college visits so that students and parents may make a more informed decision for post-secondary education. It is preferred that these visits be in conjunction with school holidays and/or breaks outside of academic time. Understanding that this may be difficult at times, seniors are encouraged to use their privilege day off from school on Testing Day (Thursday, October 8, 2025) to visit colleges. Juniors receive one college visit day on Thursday of Mission Week (February 26, 2026) to visit the colleges of their choice; additionally, juniors have the option of taking the PSAT/NMSQT on Testing Day (Thursday, October 8, 2025) or may use the day for a college visit. An official college visit letter must be submitted to the Attendance Office for these designated days to not be counted as days absent.

Weather Contingency Absences

Assumption will contact local network television stations and will communicate with students and parents if there are changes to the normal school day due to inclement weather. Parents should use their own discretion in inclement weather. The safety of the student is the school's utmost concern.

School Trip Policy

Students must have good attendance for participation in trips and activities that involve absence(s) from school. Good attendance is defined as <u>no more than 5 absences</u> (not related to school activities) per semester per class. Special cases will be left to the discretion of the Dean of Students. Students must communicate their planned absence to teachers and are responsible for obtaining any missed work. A student's participation in a school activity or field trip does not excuse her from assignments/homework due on the day of a field trip or activity. Students must be picked up immediately after an event or they may lose the privilege of attending future trips.

Retreats

Because Assumption is a mission-based community, retreats are given highest priority and students are both encouraged and enabled to participate. Retreats, like field trips, are school functions, and students are not considered absent, although they still must check class pages on Teams to find out anything they missed and be prepared for returning to class following the retreat. Because of the emotional, spiritual, and physical energy involved in retreat, due dates for make-up work may be extended based upon the length and timing of the retreat. All assignments missed while on retreat will be made up in accordance to the retreat make-up work policy.

Any student who is unable to pay the retreat fee should see the Retreat Director or Director of Mission Effectiveness about financial assistance. Payment plans and scholarships are available.

Mission Week

Mission Week is held in late winter (February 23-26, 2026). During Mission Week, students will report to school by 8:50 a.m. (one hour later than usual) each day. Dismissal for all four days of Mission Week is at 3:00 p.m. The regular schedule of classes is suspended, and all students participate in a variety of special activities centered on the school's mission to educate the whole person in a community of faith, compassion, integrity, and excellence. Activities are designed to help students grow both intellectually and spiritually as well as equip them with an assortment of practical skills they will need for the future; they include assemblies, workshops, service activities, mission trips, field trips, job shadowing and college visits for juniors, and retreat for seniors.

Mission Week Policies

- Attendance during Mission Week and participation in the planned activities is required for all students. Absences during Mission Week will be treated as an absence from a full day of classes unless a medical note is submitted to the Dean of Students.
- Each day of Mission Week begins at 8:50 a.m. with dismissal at 3:00 p.m.
- Students may wear spirit wear on Monday of Mission Week and wear regular uniforms when at school the other days; sophomores need to dress for ACTS service on Wednesday and Thursday. Students are to dress appropriately when involved in off-campus activities.
- On some days, lunch will be available in the cafeteria as usual. On other days, however, students will need to bring their lunch as they will be eating off-campus or lunch will be part of a special activity. Students will need to pay close attention to the schedule given to them so they will know whether they need to bring their lunch or not.
- All school rules in the handbook apply all week to all students whether they are on campus or not.
- Students must submit signed permission slips for all off-campus activities by the stated deadline. Failure to do so will make the student ineligible to participate.
- Juniors and seniors must provide written verification of participation for off-campus activities for which individual plans were made (college visits, job shadowing, in-town service); failure to do so may result in disciplinary penalties as appropriate.

Make-up Work Policy

Any time a student misses class, she is expected to make up all the work she missed.

- Tests, quizzes, homework, projects, or classwork due on the day of an absence will be allowed to be made up regardless of when the assignment was made.
- If teachers update grades on PowerSchool before the makeup work is turned in, a zero will be used as a placeholder until the assignment is turned in.

Expectations for classwork submission timelines are outlined below:

If a student misses one class/day of school and returns the following day:

- The student is expected to check the agenda and learning targets on Microsoft Teams and have all work completed for the next class period.
 - o If the student is unable to complete the assignment due to lack of materials, confusion based on the complexity of the material, etc., in order to avoid late work penalties it is the student's responsibility to communicate with the teacher in advance of the next class period either in person or via email to ask for assistance and/or to schedule a time to follow up during RTI or before or after school.
- A student who is present for a test but was absent for a review before the test is still expected to take the test if she only missed one school day or class period.

If a student misses two to four consecutive days of school:

- While absent, the student is expected to check the agenda and learning targets on Microsoft Teams as able and have all work completed for the next class period if possible.
 - If the student is unable to complete the assignment due to continued illness, lack of materials, confusion based on the complexity of the material, etc., then it is the student's responsibility to communicate with the teacher in advance of the next class period either in person of via email to ask for assistance and/or to schedule a time to follow up during RTI or before or after school.
- If a student who was absent for two to four consecutive days of school or class periods and returns to school on the day of a quiz or test, she may opt to delay taking the test or quiz. The student should then refer to the Make-Up Work Test and Quizzes section below for details about timelines to make up a test or quiz she opted to delay.

If a student misses five or more consecutive days of school:

- While absent, the student is expected to check the agenda and learning targets on Microsoft Teams as able and have all work completed for when she returns if possible.
- The student's school counselor or learning differences coordinator, if applicable, will facilitate
 communication with the student's teachers and will meet with the student to organize her make-up work,
 coordinate taking make-up tests/quizzes, and communicate details of her make-up plan to the student's
 Dean of Studies and teachers.

Make-up Tests and Quizzes

Missed tests and quizzes need to be made up in study or in testing pool after school within five school days of the student's return to school. Work, sports practices, or issues with a ride are not valid reasons for an extension to this deadline. Students who want to take a make-up test/quiz in study need to sign up to do so with the study coordinator upon arrival in study. Students who want to take a make-up test/quiz in testing pool will do so after the school day Monday through Thursday.

If a student does not make up a test within five school days of returning from an absence, the test will be assessed a 10% penalty to the grade earned for each school day until the test is completed. The late penalty for the test will be capped at -50% of the student's earned grade if it is completed within the current semester.

Make-up Work for Participation in School-related Functions

When students miss classes to participate in school-related functions such as field trips, athletic competitions with school teams, speech competitions, KYA/KUNA, etc., they are not considered absent for attendance purposes. They still must check class pages on Teams to find out anything they missed and be prepared for returning to class.

Make-up Work for School-related Functions Involving Multiple Days/Nights

- When a student is gone overnight for two or more consecutive days and at least one of the days is a school day to participate in a school-related function (SRF), the student is expected to work with her teachers and have all work completed in a time frame equal to the number of days (including weekend days) she was gone.
 - > If a student is gone overnight for a SRF on Thursday and Friday but returns home on Friday, she has the two weekend days to prepare make-up work so should have work ready to turn in on Monday/Tuesday when she returns to school.
 - > If a student is gone overnight for a SRF on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday, returning home on Sunday evening, she has three days to complete make-up work and should have it ready to turn in when she has her classes by the following Thursday/Friday.
 - > If a student is gone overnight for a SRF on Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, returning home on Saturday evening, she has three days to complete make-up work and should have it ready to turn in when she has her classes by the following Wednesday/Thursday.
 - > If a student is gone overnight for a SRF on Monday and Tuesday, returning home on Tuesday evening, she has two days to complete make-up work and should have it ready to turn in when she has her classes on the following Friday/Monday.
- Assignments due while a student is gone for multiple days/nights for a SRF and those new assignments announced while she was gone that can be completed over the weekend should be completed. Assignments that cannot be completed (confusion, new material, level of difficulty, missing information, etc.) should be prepared to the extent the student is able.
- Students participating in a mid-week SRF that involves multiple days/nights will not be expected to take tests or have projects due the day they return to class, whether announced previously or missed while gone for the SRF.
- All missed tests and quizzes must be made up within five school days upon returning from a multiday/night SRF. Students are, however, expected to take tests previously scheduled and turn in projects when they have the weekend at home to prepare. Unannounced tests or quizzes, as well as those missed while the student was gone, must be taken within five school days of her return to school.

Retreat Make-up Work

Retreats, like field trips, are school functions, and retreatants are not considered absent. They still must check class pages on Teams to find out anything they missed and be prepared for returning to class. Because of the emotional, spiritual, and physical energy involved in retreat, due dates for make-up work may be extended based upon the length and timing of the retreat.

Freshmen, sophomores, and juniors who go on retreat and senior leaders should check class pages on Microsoft Teams on the day they return from retreat. This will allow them to find out anything they missed and be prepared for returning to class.

- Assignments due while on retreat and those new assignments announced while on retreat that can be completed over the weekend should be completed. Assignments that cannot be completed (confusion, new material, level of difficulty, missing information, etc.) must be prepared to the extent the student is able.
- Students returning to class on a Thursday or Friday after a mid-week (Tuesday-Wednesday) retreat will have the weekend to prepare assignments. Students attending a mid-week retreat will not be expected to take tests or have projects due the day they return to class, whether announced previously or missed while on retreat.
- All missed tests and quizzes must be made up within five school days upon returning from retreat. Students are, however, expected to take tests previously scheduled and turn in projects when they have the weekend to prepare. Unannounced tests or quizzes, as well as those missed while gone, must be taken within five school days of return to school.

Seniors who go on retreat are encouraged to check with teachers about missed assignments before leaving on retreat. All seniors are expected to check class pages on Teams when they return from retreat.

- Work previously assigned and due while on retreat should be completed and turned in by Wednesday and Thursday after returning to school if the retreat ends on Friday or on Friday and Monday if the retreat returns on Sunday. New material assigned while on retreat should be completed by the end of the week if at all possible. Seniors who cannot complete assignments (new material, level of difficulty, confusion) must communicate with individual teachers and make further arrangements and deadlines for completing work.
- Seniors will not be expected to take tests the day they return to class, whether announced previously or missed while on retreat. All missed tests and quizzes must be made up within five school days upon returning from retreat.
- Previously assigned long-term projects in the major category are due as assigned.
- Previously assigned long-term projects due after the block a student leaves for retreat or while on retreat is due the class period a student returns.

Curriculum and Academic Policies

The academic program at Assumption is designed to meet the abilities, talents, aptitudes, and interests of all students. The course of study is college preparatory for all students, although those in the academic level may need to enter the preparatory program of the college to which they are admitted.

Classification of Students

Year	Required credits
Freshman	Has met entrance requirements
Sophomore	At least 7
Junior	At least 14
Senior	At least 21

Students must take a minimum of seven courses each semester and earn seven credits each year. A failure in any course must be made up before returning the next year. Assumption only awards a full credit in yearlong courses unless a student is not awarded credit due to a violation of the attendance policy or a student fails the 2nd semester of a yearlong class in order to ensure mastery of the course learning targets

A student earning less than six credits in one year may not return to Assumption. In order to earn an Assumption diploma, a student may make up no more than 2.0 failed credits through summer school or correspondence during her high school career; no course may be repeated at Assumption. An appeal can be made to the principal for exception to any of the above policies.

Graduation Requirements

- Seniors must earn the 28.25 required credits to graduate and receive an Assumption diploma.
- Seniors with fewer than 27.25 approved credits may not participate in the graduation ceremony.
- Students must take the ACT at least once and have the score submitted to Assumption High School.
- Students must satisfactorily complete a research paper in their English IV class.

Levels

Leveled courses are available to students to allow for an individual course of studies. Based on their academic needs, students may take courses from various levels and/or may move from one level to another upon the recommendation of teachers and approval from her dean of studies.

Academic: college preparatory course for freshman and sophomore students requiring greater emphasis on basic skills

Honors: college preparatory course based on standard high school curriculum which requires in-depth consideration of concepts and independent study and research

Honors 1: college preparatory course requiring in-depth consideration of concepts, independent study, analysis, and research; material is presented at an accelerated rate.

Advanced: the most advanced high school level course available to students; accelerated college preparatory course which requires students to independently analyze and synthesize curriculum

Dual Credit: dual credit college level course; credit may be earned through Bellarmine University, Western Kentucky University, Jefferson Community and Technical College, and University of Louisville.

Advanced Placement: College Board approved course; students prepare to take AP exams.

Course Changes

The student's Dean of Studies must approve any change in courses. Changing courses to move up or down a level in the same course is considered on a case by case basis and does not incur a schedule change fee. Before a levels change will be permitted, a student must show that she has exhausted every resource available to be successful in the current level. This includes:

peer tutoring, utilizing the Achievement Center, meeting with the teacher outside of class time, utilizing RTI opportunities, having no missing homework assignments and fully participating in class. A levels change does not rescue a student from a low grade. Elective changes requested during the prior semester are not assessed a fee. Dropping/adding an elective may be allowed depending on the constraints of the master schedule at the beginning of the semester until the drop/add deadline and a \$20 schedule change fee is assessed. After the drop/add deadline, no elective can be changed.

Required Credits

Theology	4 credits
English	4 credits
Math	4 credits
Science	3 credits
World Language	2 credits
World History	1 credit
U.S. History	1 credit
Government	½ credit
Geography	½ credit
Applied Digital Skills	½ credit
Fine/Performing Arts	1 credit
(choice of Art, Drama, or Music; see note below)	
Public Speaking	½ credit
Health	½ credit
Physical Education	½ credit
Electives	5½ credits
Credits required for graduation	28.5 credits

A full credit in AP Art History or AP Music Theory may replace the 1 credit in Fine/Performing Arts.

Extra Credit

Any extra credit assignment in a course must be offered to the entire class and prior to the close of the grading period.

Credit Recovery

In the event that a student fails a course, she is required to recover that credit in order to return to Assumption the following school year. The grade earned in the recovery credit program does not replace the failed grade in the GPA calculation or on the student's transcript. It is listed as a separate grade on the transcript and is an additional grade and credit in the student's GPA calculation. Credit recovery grades are weighted at the honors level. The recovery credit is not included in the reported KEES GPA.

Second Semester Exams for Seniors

If a cumulative exam is administered in a senior course, teachers of seniors have the option to exempt them from second semester cumulative exams provided they have an A average for the <u>course</u> (not just the semester). Dual credit courses require that the students take semester/final exams. Those students in AP classes who do not take the AP exam must take a second semester cumulative exam. All second semester exams must be taken when scheduled unless the absence is excused with a doctor's note.

Textbooks

eCampus is the official supplier of textbooks and digital learning materials for AHS students. With the exception summer reading materials and their graphing calculator, these materials are included in tuition and will be delivered to each student's home the week before school begins. Students should take good care of all physical materials in accordance with eCampus policies and return them as directed.

Advanced Placement Program

The Advanced Placement (AP) program is a series of college-level courses and exams for secondary school students. It is a special college-level learning experience that takes a full academic year of in-depth study and rigorous research.

The exams are given on specific days in May and are scored by the College Board. Every examination receives an overall grade on a five-point scale: 5 (extremely well qualified), 4 (well qualified), 3 (qualified), 2 (possibly qualified), and 1 (no recommendation). The great majority of U.S. colleges accept grades of 3 and above. This acceptance then transfers to earned college credit hours at the discretion of the university.

AP courses offered at Assumption High School include Art History, Biology, Calculus AB, Calculus BC, Chemistry, Computer Science Principles, Computer Science A, English Language, English Literature, Environmental Science, French Language, U.S. Government and Politics, Human Geography, Music Theory, Physics, Psychology, Research, Seminar, Spanish Language, Statistics, Studio Art: 2-D Design, Studio Art: 3-D Design, Studio Art: Drawing, U.S. History, and World History.

AP Capstone Program

Assumption is the only all-girls Catholic high school in Louisville to offer the AP Capstone Program, a College Board program that equips students with the independent research, collaborative teamwork, and communication skills that are increasingly valued by colleges and employers. It cultivates curious, independent, and collaborative scholars and prepares them to make logical, evidence-based decisions.

AP Capstone is comprised of two AP courses, AP Seminar and AP Research, taken in two consecutive years, and is designed to complement and enhance the discipline-specific study in other AP courses. Assumption High School offers the AP Capstone program to provide unique research opportunities for current AP students and to expand access to our Advanced Placement Program by encouraging students to master the argument-based writing skills.

AP Capstone Diploma

The AP Capstone Diploma is awarded to students who successfully complete and pass AP exams for four additional AP courses throughout high school. The AP Capstone Diploma Program allows students to create the academic focus that is most meaningful for them and provides a forum for students to explore their areas of interest in a rigorous classroom environment which expects college-level outcomes in their research.

MCAULEY HONORS PROGRAM

The McAuley Honors Program of Assumption High School provides academically gifted students with rigorous coursework, recognition, support, and learning opportunities outside the scope of the traditional college preparatory high school curriculum. McAuley Scholars have access to additional academic advising, gain opportunities for standardized testing preparation and experience, and learn about opportunities and resources for academically gifted students.

Students who enroll in advanced or college-credit classes for all core subjects in their freshman or sophomore year will be issued an invitation to the McAuley Honors Program. The five core subjects are: English, mathematics, science, social studies, and world languages. Students must accept the invitation by signing a handbook agreement form in order to be considered enrolled in the program. Those who are a year ahead in math or world language may take H1 level coursework to accommodate the transition; however, upon entry into pre-calculus, French III, or Spanish III, that student must enroll in these courses at the advanced level to maintain her McAuley Scholar status.

Juniors and seniors may request an invitation to the McAuley Honors Program if they meet the following criteria:

- Current enrollment in any and all core subjects at the advanced or college-credit level
- Significant course work across a variety of subject areas at the advanced or college-credit level
- A cumulative GPA of 3.5 or higher
- Juniors must be on-track to complete two AP courses by the end of the year; seniors must be on-track to complete four
- Active participation in an academic club

Such requests must be submitted in writing no later than August of the senior year. Any request for enrollment by a junior or senior will be reviewed by both the McAuley Honors Program Director and the student's academic dean within one month of submission, at which time an invitation will either be granted or denied. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Program Requirements

- 1) In addition to enrolling in all core-subject classes at the advanced or college-credit level, students must maintain a 3.5 cumulative grade point average (GPA) and complete four (4) AP courses by graduation. If a student drops below a 3.5 cumulative GPA, she will be placed on academic probation.
- 2) All McAuley Scholars must participate in at least one McAuley Honors Program event per semester during their time with the program. The McAuley Honors Program will provide a minimum of three opportunities for participation each semester which could include cultural events, guest speakers, or group discussions. Students who do not participate in at least one activity during a given semester will be placed on probation for the following semester, with the expectation that they will participate in at least two events in the coming semester.
- 3) Juniors and seniors in the McAuley Honors Program must participate in at least one additional academic club. This includes but is not limited to NHS, Beta Club, subject-specific honor societies, Quick Recall, etc.

Dual Credit Courses

Assumption offers dual credit college level (DC) courses through Bellarmine University, Western Kentucky University, Jefferson Community and Technical College, and University of Louisville. Requirements include a minimum ACT or SAT score, a GPA requirement and teacher recommendation. These requirements vary by

university and course. Students should consult their Dean of Studies or the course catalog for the specific details of each course. Admission to each Dual Credit program must be completed by the student before or during the first week of school depending on the requirements of the university. Completion of application to each program is the responsibility of each student and not Assumption High School. Additionally, payment must be made to each university by the student in order for the student to obtain college credit. KHEAA offers a Dual Credit scholarship which students may utilize to pay for up to two courses per year. In order to take advantage of this scholarship, the student is responsible for completing the application by a deadline each semester set by the state via www.KHEAA.com.

Grading Policies

Class Decile

Assumption calculates and reports class deciles based on the quality point chart below. Instead of naming a valedictorian and salutatorian at graduation, the top 5% of the senior class will be recognized as "graduating with distinction," and all students with a 4.0 will be recognized as "graduating with honors."

	A+	Α	A-	B+	В	B-	С	D	F
AP (Advanced	9.5	9.2	9	8.5	8	7.5	7	6	0
Placement) and DC									
(Dual Credit)									
AD (Advanced)	7.5	7.2	7	6.5	6	5.5	5	4	0
H1 (Honors 1)	6.5	6.2	6	5.5	5	4.5	4	3	0
H (Honors)	5.5	5.2	5	4.5	4	3.5	3	2	0
AC (Academic)	4.5	4.2	4	3.5	3	2.5	2	1	0

Grade Components

Advanced Placement and Dual Credit -70% tests/major assignments, assessments, and projects; 30% quizzes and homework unless indicated otherwise is course syllabus

Advanced and Honors 1 -70% tests/major assignments, assessments, and projects; 30% quizzes and homework

Honors - 60% tests/major assignments, assessments, and projects; 40% quizzes and homework **Academic** -50% tests/major assignments, assessments, and projects; 50% quizzes and homework

Grading Scale

A+ 98-100	B+ 88-89	C+ 81-82	D+ 74-75	F Below 70
A 94-97	B 85-87	C 78-80	D 72-73	
A- 90-93	B- 83-84	C- 76-77	D- 70-71	

Grades Online

Grades are available on the Internet via PowerSchool as a convenience to parents and students and are not official. Teachers post grades bi-weekly, generally by the 1st and 15th of every month unless the 1st or 15th falls on a weekend or school holiday. In those instances, grades will be uploaded on the next day that school is in session. Many teachers update grades more frequently. Students and their parents may access their grades via the PowerSchool website by providing a username and password which is assigned by the school.

GPA

Assumption's grading scale is based on a four-point system. A student's grade point average (GPA) is determined by dividing the total points earned by the number of classes taken. GPA is calculated on final grades for a course and not on semester or mid-semester grades.

Grade	Points
A+	4
Α	4
A-	4

Grade	Points
C+	2.67
С	2.33
C-	2

Grade	Points
B+	3.67
В	3.33
B-	3

Grade	Points
D+	1.67
D	1.33
D-	1

A grade of F will earn 0 points towards a student's GPA.

Honor Roll

Each semester, students are eligible for the honor roll based on semester grades according to these criteria:

Principal's List: 4.0 GPA
First Honors: 3.8-3.99 GPA
Second Honors: 3.5-3.79 GPA

Weighted GPA

Assumption will also report a weighted GPA on the transcript according to the following scale. Weighted GPA will not be used for any other purposes such as decile ranking, Honor Roll, National Honor Society, etc.

AP/DC	Advanced	College Prep (H1, H and AC)
A = 5	A = 4.5	A = 4
B = 4	B = 3.5	B = 3
C = 3	C = 2.5	C = 2
D = 2	D = 1.5	D = 1
F = 1	F = 0.5	F = 0

Withdrawal Policy

Any student who withdraws from Assumption must do the following:

- have a parent or guardian call the school indicating the withdrawal date;
- provide to the Registrar a withdrawal form completed by the parent explaining why the student is
 withdrawing, naming the school to which the student's records should be forwarded, and including the
 parent's signature; failure to provide this may result in the student being reported truant to the school
 board in the county in which she resides;
- return her laptop, any Media Center books, and other materials belonging to the school to the Registrar;
- pay all tuition due in accordance with all financial policies listed below;
- inform the new school that they must officially request, in writing, school records from Assumption High School.

Late Work Policy

Late work for mastery assignments/projects is assessed a 10% penalty of the grade earned for each calendar day that the work is late. Late penalties for mastery category assignments will be capped at -50% of the student's earned grade if the assignment is submitted within the current semester. Students need to be aware that late penalties accrue on Saturdays, Sundays, and school holidays. Students may submit the work online to stop the accrual of late penalties. Due to the unique nature of communication and performance courses such as Public Speaking and Acting, teachers of those courses will have additional details in their syllabi regarding late policy expectations.

For progress category grades, late penalties will be capped at -50% of the student's earned grade if the assignment is submitted within the current unit. It is the student's responsibility to see that any late work is submitted to the appropriate teacher; teachers' schedules are available in the Main Office if a student needs to find out where a teacher is during the school day.

Standardized Testing

ACT and/or SAT standardized test scores earned during a student's high school career do not appear on her transcript. ACT and/or PSAT scores are sent with the transcripts of juniors who apply for the Governor's Scholars Program as this is required by the GSP application process.

Freshmen and Sophomores

- The PreACT is administered to freshmen and sophomores on ACT Testing Day in October. This test measures academic development in four key subject areas: writing skills, mathematics, reading, and science reasoning. The PreACT complements the ACT assessment in content and format and includes a Study Power assessment and career planning information.
- Freshmen and sophomore students will also have the opportunity to take the PSAT and the PSAT Lead & Learn Day in October. This test is required for freshman and sophomore McAuley Scholars and recommended for any student who is planning to pursue academic scholarships in the future. Parents and guardians will have the opportunity to register their freshman or sophomore daughters for the PSAT via a survey sent out in August and due in early September.

Juniors

- The PSAT/NMSQT will be offered to all juniors on the PSAT Lead & Learn Day in October. This
 Preliminary Scholastic Aptitude Test and National Merit Scholarship Qualifying Test helps students to
 prepare for college entrance exams, as well as qualify for National Merit consideration, the Governor's
 Scholars Program, and AP courses. Juniors may opt out of the PSAT/NMSQT via a survey sent to all
 parents and guardians in August and due in early September. The PSAT remains a requirement for
 junior McAuley Scholars.
- Juniors will participate in two ACT School Day Testing events- one in October and one in March. The cost of these two tests is included in tuition dollars, and the results can be sent to colleges using the MyACT registration portal.

Seniors

• It is a graduation requirement that students must take the ACT and have the score submitted to Assumption High School.

College Entrance Assessments

- The ACT or SAT is required by many colleges for admission, and even those colleges which are "test optional" typically require an ACT or SAT score for scholarship consideration. It is therefore recommended that students take at least one administration of the ACT and/or SAT outside of the school day.
- SAT Subject Tests, which are subject specific tests, are required by some highly selective colleges. It is recommended that these tests be taken as close as possible to completing a course in the subject. The institution to which the student is applying will determine if these tests are necessary.
- Registration for these tests should be completed online. **Our school code, 181-510, must be included for all test registrations.**
- Detailed information on these tests and the college process will be provided to juniors by their college counselor.

Standardized Testing Accommodations for Students with Diagnosed Learning Differences

Upon request from a parent or guardian, students with documented disabilities requiring special testing accommodations, as diagnosed and recommended by a licensed psychologist and/or medical professional may apply for such accommodations with the test maker. For ACT/PSAT/SAT, there needs to be "history" of diagnosis to substantiate the need for testing accommodations. The application process is completed through Assumption's learning differences program. This process takes six to eight weeks to complete; therefore, requests should be made as soon as possible.

Scholarships

Presidential Merit Award

For students taking the High School Placement Test at Assumption, four-year renewable Presidential Merit Awards are given to members of the class of 2029 who score in the top 10% on the High School Placement Test. These scholarships range from \$1,000 - \$4,000.

Students must take the High School Placement Test at Assumption High School on the Archdiocesan designated days in December or January to be eligible for the Merit Based Scholarships.

High School Placement Test

Students taking the **High School Placement Test** at Assumption may qualify for scholarships if they rank among the top 20 scorers. To be eligible for consideration of a HSPT scholarship, the student must take the HSPT on either the December HSPT date or the January HSPT make-up date. Students will receive HSPT scholarship notification in February along with acceptance letters. These scholarships are renewable as long as recipients attend AHS, accept the invitation to become McAuley Scholars, and meet the criteria expected of a McAuley Scholar. McAuley Scholars enroll in all advanced level classes, have completed at least four AP courses upon graduation, and maintain a minimum 3.5 GPA.

1st place:	\$3,000	11th place: \$1,000
2nd place:	\$2,500	12th place: \$1,000
3rd place:	\$2,500	13th place: \$1,000
4th place:	\$2,500	14th place: \$1,000
5th place:	\$2,500	15th place: \$1,000
6th place:	\$1,500	16th place: \$1,000
7th place:	\$1,500	17th place: \$1,000
8th place:	\$1,500	18th place: \$1,000
9th place:	\$1,500	19th place: \$1,000
10th place:	\$1,500	20th place: \$1,000

A complete list of Scholarships is available to Assumption High School students and are awarded annually, subject to the availability of funds. Specific details and information about individual scholarships are available on the school website. Applications will be made available at least two months prior to the application due date.

Student Services and Programs

Student Leadership and Engagement

Assumption High School enjoys a tradition of academic excellence and development of Christian leaders who are committed to the values of compassion toward all and service to those in need. To answer the call to Christian leadership, a student:

- reflects gospel values by maintaining integrity in academic and social settings
- makes decisions using her Catholic Christian values
- respects self, peers, teachers, school and community
- displays intrinsic motivation
- models positive behavior and enthusiasm
- plans, implements and evaluates activities

A full listing of available student co-curricular activities can be found here.

Achievement Center

The Achievement Center is located in the Media Center and exists to assist students with overcoming difficulties related to their academic program of studies. Specifically, this program serves students who have not been identified as having diagnosed learning differences but who may still need assistance with time management, organization, research/study, or test taking skills. Any student is welcome to come to the Achievement Center for help on an as-needed basis. Students may be referred by a dean, teacher, or parent, where they will meet with the assigned teacher during their study period as planned, with mandatory attendance for students who are referred for services by a dean or teacher. Students may also be assigned a peer tutor by the Achievement Center. Morning and after school assistance in the Achievement Center is available by reservation only.

The Achievement Center is regularly open 7:55 a.m. – 3:15 p.m. Monday through Friday; however, an AC faculty member may be available earlier or later pending student reservations. All student requests outside regular hours must be made in advance.

Homework Hall

This service is available to any students who need to stay after school and get started on homework. Students may choose to attend Homework Hall on their own or they may be assigned to attend by the Dean of Studies or learning differences teacher. Students who attend the homework hall have supervised time to organize/plan and gather all necessary materials for successful project and homework completion at home. Homework hall is available in the Learning Support Center after school on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays from 3:05-3:45 p.m. Proctoring responsibilities for homework hall are shared by the learning differences specialists.

Peer Tutoring

The peer tutoring program is designed to provide opportunities for academic assistance to students having difficulty in a specific subject area. A student or teacher can request a peer tutor by emailing the Achievement Center Director, who will match the student up with an available tutor-during her study block or after school. Whenever feasible, students are paired with students with similar learning styles. If a student requires more help than a peer tutor can provide or if an adequate peer tutor is not available during a given study period, outside assistance (paid) should be considered.

Study Hall

Study Hall is held in the cafeteria during all blocks except the lunch blocks, when it is held in the theater. Since most students take only seven courses, there is time every other day for a study block. All studies are silent studies, and students have assigned seats. Students may work together with partners or in small groups during study with the permission of a study proctor. Students use their name badges/student IDs to sign out/back in using our LibraryTrac app when leaving study.

As a senior privilege, seniors with non-lunch-block studies may work in the Senior Courtyard during study with permission of the study coordinator. All school/study rules extend to the courtyard during study.

Students may take make-up tests/quizzes during study; they need to sign up to do so when coming into study.

The study block allows students to access the wealth of resources available to them during the school day:

- Media Center
- Achievement Center
- Peer Tutoring
- Guidance and Counseling Services (school counselors and college counselors)
- Boeckmann Lab

Students may also use their study time to meet with their deans, specific staff members, and teachers who may be available and to work in the art rooms or other resource areas with supervision.

Learning Differences Program

Support services for students with diagnosed learning differences are provided through the learning differences program and include the following:

- Confidential sharing of the student's learning profile with the student's teachers; the learning profile provides information regarding the diagnosed learning difference, student strengths and difficulties, and the reasonable accommodations that will be provided by AHS;
- Participation in Learning Differences Program. Students meet with their assigned Learning Differences Specialist in small groups for Learning Support Time (LST) during their study block. The students are grouped as accurately as possible by grade and area of learning difference. Typical components of the program are ongoing development of individual learning profiles based on strengths, difficulties, descriptions of learning difference, interests, learning styles and the suggested classroom accommodations. Specific topics discussed during the study block may include study skills, time management, organization, regular grade checks, goal setting, postsecondary preparation issues, social skills, and self-esteem reinforcement.
- Coordination of special testing opportunities; these will vary for each student and will be discussed individually with each student by the learning differences specialists.
- Students in the Learning Differences Program and their parents must sign accommodation and expectation agreements as part of the Student Accommodations Plan, under the guidance of their learning differences specialist.

The Learning Differences Program is housed in the Learning Support Center which features a supervised testing room for students needing accommodations, classrooms, work space, and staff offices.

The Learning Support Center office hours are as follows:

LSC testing pool:

7:30 a.m. - 8:00 a.m. Mondays, Wednesdays, Fridays 7:50-8:50 Tuesdays, Thursdays

LSC Homework Hall:

3:00 p.m. - 3:45 p.m. Mondays, Wednesdays, Thursdays

LSC with students:

8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. Monday through Friday

Work It Wednesdays

The Achievement Center hosts Work it Wednesdays (WIW) in the Media Center several times a month before school hours. This is a great opportunity for students to receive extra support in their classes from peer tutors, study groups, or the Achievement Center teachers. It is also the perfect environment to work on homework and projects. The Rocket Report will list the scheduled dates for Work it Wednesday each month and students will receive an email on Mondays of WIW to reserve their spot.

Media Center Policies

The AHS Media Center/library is open Monday through Friday during the school year from 7:15 a.m. to 3:45 p.m. The Media Center closes daily during 2nd lunch. The Media Center may also close occasionally for club and other meetings and those times are communicated via PA and Student SharePoint announcements.

For more information on the policies for student use of the Media Center, click here.

Special Programs

RETREATS

Assumption has offered a four-year program of overnight retreats for more than 30 years. Freshman, junior and senior retreats are held at the Mount St. Francis Retreat Center in Southern Indiana. Sophomore retreat is held at The Passionist Earth and Spirit Center near St. Agnes Church in Louisville. While on retreat, which is a one- or two-day experience for underclasswomen and typically a four-day experience for seniors, students listen to talks by students, graduates, and faculty/staff leaders, have time to reflect on their lives and participate in large- and small-group activities, share meals, and unite in prayer. Approximately 45 seniors are given the opportunity to develop leadership skills on freshman retreat as small-group leaders and presenters. Click the link above for more detailed information.

- Freshman Retreat: I Am Real; objective: to discover a greater sense of self
- **Sophomore Retreat:** Community & Compassion; objective: to spark relationships and understanding
- Junior Retreat: Listen With Your Heart: objective: to respect the inherent dignity in others
- **Senior Retreat:** The Rose; objective: to answer the call inherent in being a child of God, created in love and free to choose to live in love

Retreat Letters

Students are encouraged to write letters of support and encouragement to freshman and senior classmates going on retreat. These may be placed in the retreat mailboxes located in the connector between the main building and the Convocation and Athletic Center. In order for freshman retreatants to receive letters from classmates while they are on retreat, letters must be in the retreat mailboxes by 8:00 a.m. on the day the retreat leaves; for senior retreats leaving after school, letters must be in the retreat mailboxes by 3 p.m., and for senior retreats that leave in the morning, letters must be in the retreat mailboxes by 4 p.m. the day before the retreat leaves. Letters placed in the mailboxes after these times will be given to the students when they return from retreat. Parents may leave retreat letters in the retreat mailbox outside of the Arts & Sciences wing entrance on the two-way drive side of the main building.

Service Learning Programs

ACTS (A Christian through Service) is Assumption's service learning program that has both curricular and cocurricular components.

- Freshmen are encouraged to become involved in the service work of their choosing. Since freshmen aren't yet able to drive, only five hours of service, performed on their own outside of the school day, is required.
- Service is a required component sophomore year and closely tied to theology curriculum. Sophomore service is a more structured, guided 10-week program in which each sophomore goes to an assigned community agency, school, facility serving people who are disabled, or a senior citizen home. Sophomores go into the Louisville community to perform acts of service during the school day on Wednesdays during January, February, and March; transportation to their assigned agencies is provided. Information about special ACTS uniform requirements for sophomores is included in the Uniform Code. Prior to beginning their work in the community, sophomores participate in an

orientation designed to familiarize them with the guidelines and expectations for which they will be held accountable.

- During the junior service program, the students are challenged to choose their agency, to do their service outside school hours, to make their own arrangements (including transportation), and to establish their own contacts and schedules. Juniors are required to complete a minimum of 15 hours of service outside the school day as part of their Catholic Social Teaching course; their service is curriculum driven and must address a social justice issue. The 15 hours must be completed by the end of the semester they take Catholic Social Teaching, with half of the hours due by midsemester; students have the option of completing part or all of their junior service the summer before their junior year. Sophomores are provided with guidance on agencies and expectations to prepare them for their junior ACTS experience.
- Senior service is a central part of the optional ARISE mission trips that seniors may elect to participate in during Mission Week. There are no service hours required as part of a theology class senior year, and students are encouraged to think about how they will make service a part of their lives after high school. Seniors in organizations like NHS, Beta Club, etc. have their own service hour requirements. Click the link above for more information.

ACE Mentor Program

The ACE Mentor Program (Architecture-Construction- Engineering) is an after-school program that provides a hands-on introduction to architecture, design, engineering, construction management, and other construction careers. Assumption is Louisville's first all-girls school to partner with the ACE Mentor Program. The program matches students with ACE professionals who volunteer their time and energy to mentor students in these fields, giving them the opportunity to see where and how they work, the skills used, and some of their projects under construction. The team of mentors also guides ACE student participants to design a project for possible construction on Assumption's campus or in the community. Upon completing the program, ACE student participants will have an enhanced opportunity to earn college scholarships if they elect to major in these fields.

The ACE Mentor Program is open to all interested students beginning freshman year; students may submit program applications at the beginning of each school year. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Assumption Aviation

Assumption's Aviation Program provides students a unique opportunity to experience a first-of-its-kind, comprehensive, four-year aviation study program aligned with Next Generation Science Standards and Common Core State Standards for Mathematics, rigorous math and science standards used in approximately 30 states nationwide. Assumption Aviation has been accepted by the nationally recognized Aircraft Owners and Pilots Associations (AOPA) to use its high school aviation science, technology, engineering, and math (STEM) curriculum. The program aims to provide students the skills they need to pursue aviation-related career and educational opportunities. The program aims to provide students the skills they need to pursue aviation-related career and educational opportunities in two career and technical education (CTE) pathways: pilot and unmanned aircraft systems (drones). Students who apply and are accepted into the program begin with a summer immersion program and continue their study in for-credit courses during the school year. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Family Program

The Family Program is a school-wide program designed to offer support to incoming freshmen as well as build unity and school spirit across the classes. The family program consists of nine families named after the nine foundations begun in Ireland by the foundress of the Sisters of Mercy, Catherine McAuley: Kingstown, Tullamore, Charleville, Carlow, Cork, Limerick, Booterstown, Galway, and Birr. Each of the families is comprised of a freshman, sophomore, junior, and senior homeroom that are located in close proximity to each other in a "family suite;" their proximity to each other facilitates communication and collaboration within their families. Community time will be used for family activities from time to time; Family Council members are elected and are responsible for leading their homerooms in family spirit activities throughout the year. Junior Homeroom Moms chosen from each family help welcome and acclimate their newest family members to Assumption by greeting freshmen on the first day of school, organizing beginning of school "get-to-know-you" activities, assisting in freshman leadership development and in general, taking care of their freshmen. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Mercy Ambassadors Exchange Program

Colegio Santa Ethnea is a co-ed college preparatory secondary school sponsored by the Sisters of Mercy of the Americas in Buenos Aires, Argentina. In February, 4-6 students from St. Ethnea travel to Louisville, attend Assumption High School, and live with Assumption students. In June, the Assumption host students travel to Buenos Aires, attend Colegio Santa Ethnea, and live with the students they hosted in February. Students at both schools apply to participate in the program and undergo a careful screening and selection process. The purposes of this educational exchange program are for students to expand their knowledge and experience of the "circle of Mercy," further their knowledge of Spanish, get to know the work of the Sisters of Mercy in different places, get to know different cultures, learn to adjust to the lifestyle of the place they visit, and learn to be a caring host and exhibit Mercy hospitality. Participation is open to sophomores and juniors in the upper two levels of Spanish when they go to Argentina (completed Spanish III or IV) who have earned at least a B in their previous Spanish classes; they must reflect the mission and values of Assumption High School and Mercy education. Click the link above for more detailed information.

Guidance Department Policies

Guidance and Counseling Program

The Assumption High School Guidance and Counseling Department's philosophy reflects and expands upon the overall mission of Assumption High School which is to educate the whole student: mind, body, and spirit. We manifest the mission of Assumption High School through programs to help our students in the areas of personal and academic counseling and college/career counseling. In addition, we are committed to staying current in our field by participating in professional organizations on the local and national levels and by keeping a current connection with area mental health professionals and referral resources. We believe that helping students experiencing personal or family problems, problems with alcohol or drug use, or other mental health concerns has a positive effect on their academic performance, classroom behavior, and attendance.

Specific goals of the program are

- to assist the students at Assumption High School in addressing their educational, personal, and social issues through a student assistance approach endorsed by the American School Counselor Association (ASCA):
- to recognize the wide range of abilities, talents, and needs of our student body by offering individualized college and career information and guidance;
- to support and educate our parents, faculty, and staff and connect them to appropriate community resources.

Counselor Confidentiality

Information shared by a student or parent within the counseling relationship must be kept confidential in accordance with the individual's rights and the counselor's professional obligations. However, confidentiality is never absolute. In general, when a student's behavior or condition poses an elevated risk to the health or safety of self or others, the counselor must take appropriate action, including notifying parents and/or school administrators of the perceived risks. This applies to students working with a school counselor on a voluntary or mandatory basis toward specific goals. However, information that comes to the attention of a school counselor outside of a counseling relationship regarding suspected unhealthy behaviors on the part of a student will be addressed in accordance with school policy. If a student reports that she has been abused or is a victim of domestic violence to a school counselor, the counselor will follow the duty to inform procedures as set forth in the American School Counselor National Standards and Kentucky Revised Statutes governing reporting abuse and protocols mandated for domestic violence.

Mental Health and Wellness

At Assumption, we are committed to promoting the mental health and well-being of all our students. Our comprehensive mental health policy aims to provide education, support, and resources to ensure every student can thrive emotionally and academically.

Mental Health Education and Awareness- Our goal is to foster a positive and inclusive school climate where students feel supported and valued. Counselors request to meet with all students at least once a semester.

Referral to Counseling- Students may refer themselves or be referred by parents, teachers, or peers. Assumption's faculty is encouraged to refer students for counseling when they exhibit signs of high

absenteeism or plummeting grades or when a student's writing or comments suggest personal or family distress. These and other warning signals often indicate a need for support.

Support for Students- Counselors are trained to recognize signs of mental health distress. We have protocols in place to provide immediate support and intervention if needed in addition to the ongoing mental health support that we provide to all our students. We maintain a referral list with a wide variety of therapeutic and academic resources. Services are provided through individual and group appointments and classroom guidance. Group counseling opportunities include personal growth groups, grief groups, divorce groups, diversity discussion groups, transfer groups, and other groups based on emerging student needs. Participation in most groups is voluntary and parent permission is assumed unless we are otherwise notified.

Other programming- In addition to individual counseling and group counseling opportunities, AHS School Counselors also offer school-wide programming which may include, but not be limited to drug/alcohol/vaping prevention, interpersonal skills, career exploration, suicide awareness, mindfulness, pet guests, and general mental wellness programming.

Crisis Intervention-In the event of a mental health crisis or a student's suicidal ideation, we have a response plan to ensure the student's safety and well-being. This includes communication with the student's parent/guardian in accordance with American School Counselor Association policies. Additionally, counselors or administration may require proof of a suicide and/or mental health assessment and a therapist's recommendation that a student is safe to return to school before a student may return to school.

Drug/Alcohol Policy- Parents are always informed if a student is mandated to their counselor for alcohol or drug use. Per Assumption's Drug and Alcohol Policies, the student will be required to undergo a professional assessment and to follow through with any recommended treatment to remain enrolled in school. The counselor also helps families locate community resources for ongoing help when needed. Referrals to community treatment agencies or private practitioners are made for both students and parents when warranted. The school is not responsible for the costs incurred for assessment or treatment.

Pregnancy Policy- A student who becomes pregnant will meet with her school counselor as soon as possible. She will be expected to adhere to the Assumption Pregnancy Policy.

AHS administration reserves the right to switch a student to a counselor different from their own assigned counselor and/or to limit the quantity of visits to the Counseling Office if a student's usage becomes excessive.

Academic Support Through the Guidance Department

In addition to academic advisement provided to students by their dean of studies, school counselors meet regularly with students to help and support in planning their high school academic program, resolving academic issues and problems, understanding standardized test scores, exploring college and career options, and making college decisions. Services are provided through individual appointments, small and large group sessions, and classroom guidance sessions.

School counselors coordinate make-up work for students not enrolled in our Learning Support Services and who have extended absences due to illness/hospitalization and those who suffer concussions. Students and/or parent/guardian should initiate contact for support with make-up work planning. School counselors collaborate with students and families for planning a student's transition back to Assumption following an

extended absence. A parent/student meeting with the school counselor may be required to go over recommended accommodations and make-up work plans following an extended absence. A transition day to work on make-up work is strongly encouraged for students returning from an extended absence.

School counselors work in collaboration with Assumption's dedicated college counselors, who help juniors, seniors, and their parents navigate the college process from college selection through writing college essays, completing and submitting applications, and applying for financial assistance and scholarships. Services are provided through individual and group appointments, individual student/parent meetings, presentations at class meetings, classroom guidance sessions, and after-school work sessions.

Special Parent Nights are offered throughout the school year and focus on topics such as the college admissions process, financial aid, and scholarships.

College and Scholarship Applications and Transcript Requests

Requests for transcripts and recommendation letters for college and scholarship applications are processed in order of priority and deadline and should be received by the Guidance and Counseling Center for processing 15 school days before they are due to be received by the college or scholarship agency. This is necessary to expedite the application process and to eliminate the possibility of any error in processing. Seniors are strongly encouraged to meet this 15 school-day deadline for the applications to be reviewed and completed on time. The Counseling center cannot guarantee that a deadline will be met if processing is requested less than five school days before the mailing deadline.

The school code for registration forms is 181-510.

Transcript Fees	
Request received 15 or more school days before the application's mailing deadline	FREE
Request received 10-14 school days before the application's mailing deadline	\$10 per transcript
Request received 6-9 school days before the application's mailing deadline	\$15 per transcript
Request received 5 or less school days prior to the application's mailing deadline	\$20 per transcript

Some college applications request the high school college counselor to provide disciplinary information about the student. It is the policy of Assumption High School that disciplinary records are internal records. They do not become part of a student's permanent record, nor are they part of the student's transcript. Students should not report any detentions, demerits, or suspensions on college applications since they are kept confidential and are considered sealed by the school.

Discipline Policies and Procedures

The choice of Assumption for one's education and formation is a choice of values. When a student and her parents choose Assumption, they agree to be governed by the basic philosophy of the school, rules, and procedures, as well as its values. The principal retains the right to amend the handbook and/or waive rules and procedures.

Disciplinary Practices

Assumption uses a five-level system of discipline for the purpose of student accountability and restorative practices.

Level 1: Detention

Detention is held in Room 203 from 7:30-8:00 a.m. on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays and from 3:10-3:40 on Tuesdays and Thursdays. If a student receives a detention, she is expected to serve it on the next school day. Students are expected to serve detention the next school day after it is assigned. They must arrive on time, based on the room clock. Arriving late or missing detention results in an additional disciplinary consequences.

During detention, students must sit upright, keep their hands visible on the desk, feet on the floor, and remain alert and reflective. All school rules apply; uniforms must be worn correctly, phones turned off, and no food, drink, gum, sleeping, reading, studying, or talking is allowed.

Parents are not notified for every detention. Detention takes priority over all other commitments. Only emergencies justify rescheduling, and this request must come from a parent and be approved by the Dean of Students beforehand.

Detentions must be served before a student may participate in graduation or year-end activities. Students with unserved detentions may not return to school until they are completed.

Level 2: Demerit

Demerits are issued for more serious or repeated misconduct. One or more demerits may be assigned, and each demerit requires three detentions. Parents must sign the disciplinary referral form, and it is the student's responsibility to ensure this happens.

Level 3: Suspension

Suspension occurs either when a student accumulates seven demerits, fails to abide by school rules and regulations, repeated misbehavior, or commits a serious offense. It includes:

- A required conference with the Dean of Students and the student's parents before returning to class.
- Suspension from all extracurricular activities and loss of classroom instruction. Tests, quizzes, or graded work missed during the suspension receive a zero and may not be made up or turned in late.
- Seven demerits will be assigned, including three that must be served in detention (nine detentions total).
- A required meeting with the school counselor (1–3 sessions) upon return to determine whether outside support is needed.

The student is encouraged to reflect on the seriousness of her actions and the responsibility that comes with being part of the AHS community.

Level 4: Probation

Probation is the final warning that a student's behavior must improve in order to remain at Assumption. While on probation:

- The student may be required to meet regularly with the school counselor.
- A full psychoeducational evaluation may be required at the family's expense. The family would be required to follow the recommendations of the evaluation.
- The Dean of Students will monitor progress closely.
- A serious infraction while on probation (including demerit-level behavior) may result in dismissal.

Level 5: Dismissal

The administration reserves the right to dismiss any student from AHS if her conduct is deemed in violation of the philosophy of the school, its procedures/rules, as well as its values. Should her conduct be deemed so inappropriate that it could adversely affect the image of the school and its students, she will be dismissed. A student who has been dismissed or required to withdraw may not attend any school-sponsored event or activity as a participant or as a guest without the express permission of the principal.

Accumulation of Demerits

The accumulation of demerits will be addressed as follows:

6th demerit: Parents notified by the Dean of Students; personal conference with parents may be required

7th demerit: Suspension of student; personal conference with parents required

10th demerit: Student may be placed on probation; parents notified by the Dean of Students

14th demerit: Second suspension, personal conference with parents; student will be placed on probation

15th demerit: When a student accumulates 15 demerits, her record is reviewed by the administrative team and a decision is made concerning her future in the Assumption community; the student and her parents will be given a due process hearing prior to a student being dismissed.

Accountability Agreements

The Accountability Agreement is a supportive way for students to take responsibility for their actions and make a fresh start. It is offered to any students who would like detentions/demerits removed from their disciplinary log. The agreement requires the student to stay detention-free for 20 consecutive school days while working toward personal goals and repairing trust with the school community.

The purpose of the agreement is to support the student in making positive choices while restoring relationships that may have been impacted by her behavior or choices. Through reflective conversations and a plan to give back to the school community, the student is encouraged to rebuild trust, demonstrate accountability, and grow as a leader. This process aligns with our commitment to restorative justice and offers a path forward grounded in hope, responsibility, and renewal.

Infractions and Consequences

Discipline will be handled on a case-by-case basis by all staff and faculty members. While a full list of all potential infractions and consequences cannot be generated, a list of common infractions and their consequences can be found here.

Behavior at Other Schools

When an Assumption student attends a curricular or extracurricular activity at another school, she is expected to abide by the policies of that school and to represent the spirit of Assumption. Any violation of the host school's policy is considered a violation of AHS's policy and will be treated according to Assumption High School's student policy. Administrators of other schools have been invited to contact Assumption when any such violation occurs.

Criminal Activity

Criminal activity will not be tolerated on school grounds or at any school-sponsored event. Students are prohibited from wearing or displaying explicit gang-related symbols. Violations may result in suspension and/or other disciplinary action as determined by the principal.

Procedure for Suspected Criminal Activity

If a student is suspected of involvement in criminal activity at school or a school event:

- The staff member who observes or suspects the behavior must report it to the principal.
- The principal will consult with appropriate resources to investigate and determine the student's involvement.
- If criminal involvement is confirmed, the student's parents/guardians will be notified, appropriate disciplinary action will be taken, and written documentation will be filed.
- If involvement cannot be confirmed but concerns remain, parents/guardians will still be notified, concerns shared, and documentation maintained.
- Local law enforcement will be contacted if a criminal act has occurred.

Public Displays of Affection

While we encourage healthy social interaction, any inappropriate physical or verbal display of affection between any individuals, regardless of gender, observed on campus or at a school-sponsored event on or off campus is not in keeping with our values and our goals for the social development of our students and is considered inappropriate behavior. Any observed inappropriate display of affection will have disciplinary consequences.

Respecting and Protecting School Community

As members of a Catholic learning community, students are always expected to show respect for the school and all its members, including outside of school and on social media. Any student who disrespects, defames, or negatively portrays the school, students, or faculty/staff may face disciplinary consequences.

Searches

To maintain a safe school environment, Assumption High School reserves the right to search a student's person, belongings, locker, or vehicle parked on school property or in a school-provided space when reasonable cause exists. Searches will be conducted by an administrator in the presence of another adult. Searches are performed clothed although students may be asked to remove outerwear (sweatshirt, sweater, coat, etc.).

In addition, the Louisville Metro Police Department may conduct random drug dog searches on campus, including parking areas. If a dog alerts on a student's locker or vehicle, police may conduct a search with a school administrator present. Parents will be notified of any searches involving their student. If illegal substances are found, the student will be considered in possession and the school's Policy will apply. Law enforcement will be notified when appropriate.

Terroristic Threatening

Under Kentucky law, a person commits terroristic threatening in the second degree when they intentionally make false statements—by any method, including electronic or online communication—with the intent to:

- 1. Cause the evacuation of a school building, school property, or school-sanctioned event;
- 2. Cause the cancellation of classes or school-sanctioned events; or
- 3. Create fear of serious bodily harm among students, parents, or school personnel.

A threat does not need to name a specific person or school to be considered terroristic threatening. [Click <u>this</u> <u>link</u> to view the full statute (KRS 508.078).]

This offense is a **Class D felony**, punishable by 1–5 years in prison and/or a \$1,000–\$10,000 fine for adults (KRS 532.020), or a fine up to \$500 for juveniles (KRS 635.085), at the discretion of the court.

Terroristic threats cause fear and significant disruption to school life. Assumption will not tolerate any such threats against students or staff. The administration will fully cooperate with law enforcement to pursue felony charges to the maximum extent of the law. Prosecution will be strongly supported, and serious consequences sought.

A student suspected of making a threat may be placed on home study during the investigation. Disciplinary actions, including suspension or dismissal, will follow if warranted.

Bullying and Harassment Policies

Assumption High School is committed to a "zero indifference" approach which means that any and all witnessed or reported incidents of bullying or harassment will be addressed appropriately, which may include conferences with students and parents, conducting an investigation, the requirement of outside counseling, and taking disciplinary action as warranted (detention, demerits, suspension, expulsion) by the severity of the situation.

For more information about specific types of harassment and how to report harassment, please click <u>here</u>.

Substance Policy

Assumption High School is committed to the health, safety, and well-being of its students. Substance use, possession, and distribution are taken seriously and handled in accordance with the school's mission and Catholic values.

Authorized Medication

Parents must notify the school nurse in writing if a student is taking prescribed medication for more than two weeks. Written notification from parents is required so that the school can respond appropriately in the event of an emergency. All medications must be kept in their original containers. At no time at should a student have in her possession narcotics, stimulants, antidepressants, tranquilizers, or other controlled substances at school and at school-sponsored events.

If a student is found using permitted medication without written notice, parents will be contacted.

Unauthorized Substances

When a student is found, for the first time, in possession of, under the influence of and/or using alcohol and/or other unauthorized chemicals, look-alike, or paraphernalia including vapes on the way to or from school, at school, or before, during, or after a school-sponsored event, the unauthorized substance or paraphernalia will be taken away from the student and the Substance Policy will be followed.

- Parents will be called to take the student home. Emergency help costs, if needed, are the family's responsibility.
- Before returning to school, the student must undergo a professional substance use assessment and complete any recommended treatment at the family's expense.
- A signed release must allow the school to access the assessment and treatment plan to ensure follow-through.
- A follow-up meeting will be held with the student, parents, guidance counselor, and Dean of Students to discuss the conditions of returning to Assumption.
- The student must meet at least three times with a school counselor and serve disciplinary consequences as deemed appropriate by the Dean of Students.
- If the student remains enrolled, she will be placed on probation and must complete all recommended treatment. The school will support the student academically during any inpatient treatment.
- Academic work missed must be made up outside of school hours.
- Failure to complete the assessment or treatment may result in required withdrawal from Assumption.
- Subsequent violations may result in dismissal from school.

Distribution or Selling of Substances

Sharing or selling alcohol, drugs, or prescription medication is considered distribution/selling. Trafficking does not require money to change hands.

If a student is found distributing or selling, the Substance Use Policy will be followed, and law enforcement will be notified.

Suspected Use, Distribution, or Possession

If school administration suspects a student is using, possessing, distributing, or selling substances, the student and parents will be contacted. If confirmed, the Substance Policy applies. If unconfirmed, no disciplinary action is taken. Suspicion alone is not grounds for discipline.

Pregnancy Policy for Students

As a Catholic school, Assumption High School upholds the Church's teaching that human life is a sacred gift and supports sexual abstinence among students. While premature sexual activity is discouraged, the school offers compassion and support to any student who chooses life for her unborn child. Pregnancy has medical, psychological, and sociological implications for her daily life.

If a faculty or staff member becomes aware of a pregnancy, they must notify the student's counselor, who will meet with the student to confirm the pregnancy, confirm parental awareness, and review the school's pregnancy policy, which must be signed.

To remain at or return to Assumption during/after pregnancy, the student must:

- Submit a doctor's statement that includes her anticipated due date and any medical concerns.
- Provide updated emergency contact information.
- Permit appropriate faculty and staff to be informed of her pregnancy and medical needs.
- Meet regularly with her school counselor for support.
- May not participate in sports or activities that the school believes may endanger her health or that of her baby without a doctor's written authorization that it is safe to do
- Follow the school dress code as closely as possible.
- Submit written clearance from her doctor before returning post-delivery; this will be kept on file with the school nurse and counselor.
- If extended absence is required, parents may need to hire a tutor to maintain academic progress in accordance to Assumption's academic policies
- After the birth, the student may not bring the baby to school.

Athletics

Sports

Assumption offers a variety of varsity and junior varsity athletic opportunities. Information about tryouts will be communicated through the athletics department. Click the link above for a full, detailed listing of athletic opportunities at Assumption High School.

Athletic Handbook

Assumption High School is a member of the Kentucky High School Athletic Association (KHSAA). As a member, we follow all the policies and guidelines set forth by the KHSAA. Please consult the athletic handbook for more information on policies and procedures governing athletics. The athletic handbook is available online at https://www.ahsrockets.org/athletics/resources/

Intramural Sports

Intramurals are organized sport and fitness opportunities that are open to all Assumption students. Intramurals offer students the chance to have fun, stay active, and meet new people without joining a competitive team at Assumption. Events include both one-day events and league play. All students are welcome and encouraged to participate in intramurals though some events may have limited capacity and require students to sign up in advance. Participants must have permission slips signed by parents to participate. Intramural sports offerings vary by year.

Interscholastic Sports

A student is eligible to try out for any team provided she has submitted all applicable KHSAA forms including a current physical from her doctor. The physical must be on the proper form provided by the Kentucky High School Athletic Association. This form can be obtained from the AHS Athletic Office or the AHS website. A student's physical must be on file in the Athletic Office before she may try out for a team. She must be eligible by all KHSAA eligibility bylaws including, but not limited to, the transfer rule and academic eligibility.

Admission to Home Events

All Assumption students (athletes and non-athletes) receive free admission to all regular season home athletic events with their school name badge and lanyard. The family of each athlete receives two athletic passes which will provide free admission to all regular season home athletic events with the payment of the athletic fee.

Cheerleading for Other Schools

Only juniors and seniors are permitted to try out and be members of St. Xavier's, Trinity's, and DeSales' cheerleading squads. These students are required to maintain passing grades in all their classes (requirements and consequences as follow).

Participation Requirements

Once a member of a team (including managers, scorers, timers, and statisticians), a student must meet the following requirements:

- Written permission to participate from her parents or guardian
- A signed copy of eligibility requirements of the Kentucky High School Athletic Association
- Paid athletic fee
- Proof of insurance coverage
- A signed copy of AHS' Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Policy for Student Athletes

- Meet academic eligibility requirements as set by Assumption High School and/or the KHSAA and specified below.
- A coach or sponsor reserves the right to set his/her own attendance and disciplinary policies regarding practices/games.

Academic Eligibility

Grades of student-athletes are checked weekly during their season. To be eligible to compete on a school team, the student-athlete must meet the following minimum grade requirements:

- Have no more than one F
- Have no more than two Ds
- Have a combination of no more than one F and one D

Probation

If at any time during a semester, student has an F in two classes, a D in three or more classes, or the combination of an F and two Ds, she will be put on probation for two weeks; a warning is issued, but the student is still allowed to practice and participate in games.

Suspension

- At the end of the two weeks, if the student still has an F in two classes, a D in three or more classes, or the combination of an F and two Ds, she will immediately be suspended from participation in contests for one week. The student will serve a full seven-day suspension from Monday through Sunday. After that seven days, if the student still has an F in two classes, a D in three or more classes, or the combination of an F and two Ds, she will remain on suspension from competition until the required grades are achieved (no more than one F and no more than one D).
- If at any time during the semester, a student is failing three or more classes for the semester, she will immediately be suspended from competition for one full week (Monday through Sunday). After that seven days, if the student is still failing two or more classes and/or has a D average in three or more classes, she will remain on suspension until the required grades are achieved (no more than one F and no more than one D).
- During a suspension period, the student may not dress in a team uniform or participate in competition. She may, however, continue to practice with the team.

Attendance Eligibility

All student attendance is checked weekly. To be eligible to participate on the school team, the student-athlete must have no more than 7 absences in any course during the semester. If a student has 7 or more absences in one course, she will be immediately suspended for 7 days (Monday-Sunday). During the suspension period, the student may not dress in team uniform or participate in competition. She may, however, participate in team practices.

Subsequent absences beyond 7 absences will result in an additional 7-day suspension.

ASSUMPTION ALMA MATER

There is JOY in your name, Assumption As fondly we sing of your praise Our Lady's love shining up above Will guide our footsteps always.

There is PRIDE in your colors, Assumption Fond memories our school days entwine The ROSE and the WHITE so serenely bright In a laurel of victory shall shine.

There is TRUTH in your banner, Assumption
As we sing of your glory and fame
We'll be loyal and true, Alma Mater to you
Our young hearts your praises proclaim.

- Sister Kyran Joyce Lawless, RSM

ASSUMPTION PEP SONG

Cheers, cheers for old AHS
Struggle for victory, never take less.
Swing our banner from on high,
Echo the chorus to the sky.
Rose stands for valor, White stands for might,
Honor is ours if we win this fight.
While we cheer through thick and thin,
Assumption High will win.

We are the community of Assumption where faith guides • compassion inspires integrity matters • excellence empowers